
Lesson 1 レッスン　1

The noun 名詞　

A noun represents the name of 
something: a person, place, thing, or 
idea.

  名詞は人、場所、物、アイデアなどの
名前を示します

man 　男

tree 　木

dog 　犬

fish 　魚

lamp 　ランプ

eye 　目

night 　夜

song 　歌

The indefinite article “a” or “an” 不定冠詞 “a”または”an”

We use the indefinite article “a” 
or “an” before a noun that can be 
counted (a count noun).
We do not use these articles before a 
noun that cannot be counted (a non - 
count noun).

  数えられる名詞(加算名詞)の前に”a”
  あるいは”an”などの不定冠詞が用い
  られます。　
　 数えられない名詞（不可賛名詞）の前
に
 はこれらの不定冠詞は使用されません.



We use the article “a” before a noun 
that starts with a consonant. 
The following letters are consonants: 
b, c, d, f, g, h, j, k, l, m, n, p, q, r, s, t, 
v, w, x, y, z.

　子音で始まる名詞の前に”a”が用いら
れます。
　次の字が子音で
す：b、c、d、f、g、h、j、k、l、
　m、n、p、q、r、s、t、v、w、x、y、z 

a boy 　1人の少年

a girl 　1人の少女

a man 　1人の男

a king 　1人の王

a queen 　1人の女王

a lamp 　1つのランプ

We use the article “an” before a noun 
that starts with a vowel. 
The following letters are vowels: a, e, 
i, o, u.

　　母音で始まる名詞の前には”an”
　を使用します。
次の字が母音です。a、e、i、o、u

an aunt 　1人の叔母

an eye 　1つの目

an island 　１つの島

an orange 　１個のオレンジ

an uncle 　1人の叔父

an hour 　1時間

The word “hour” starts with the 
consonant h, but it sounds like it 
starts with a vowel (“our”), so we use 
the article “an” before it.

　”hour”は子音hで始まりますが、母
音”our”　
　で始まるように聞こえるため、”an”を前
に
　用います。

a university 　1大学　

a European 　1人のヨーロッパ人



In the word “European”, the vowel 
e sounds like the consonant y. 
Likewise, the word university sounds 
like it starts with a consonant, so we 
use the article “a” before these words.

　　”European”という単語では、母音e
　は子音のyのように聞こえます。
　　同様に”university”という単語は
　　子音で始まるように聞こえます。
　　そのため、これらの単語の前には”a”
を用います。

Singular and Plural 単数と複数　

Plural form is usually achieved by 
adding an s to the singular form of a 
noun. 
If the noun ends with f, k, p, t or th, 
then the plural s is pronounced as /s/ 
(as in “books”).
 
For the plural of nouns ending in “ch”, 
“s”, “sh” or “x” see Lesson 2

　複数形は通常名詞の単数形にs　
　をつけて作ります。
　名詞がf、k、p、t、thで終わる場合、
　複数形のs　は”s”と発音されます
　（”books”と同様）。
　”ch”、”s”、”sh”、”x”で終わる名詞の複
数
形についてはレッスン2を読んでくださ
い。

Singular 　単数形

a book 　1冊の本

a map 　1枚の地図

a roof 　1枚の屋根

a month 　1ヶ月

an aunt 　1人の叔母

Plural 　複数形

books 　数冊の本

maps 　数枚の地図

roofs 　数枚の屋根

months 　数か月

aunts 　数人の叔母



If the noun ends with any other letter, 
then the plural s is pronounced as in 
“bags”.

　他の字で名詞が終わる場合、複数形
のs
　は”bags”と同じように発音します。

Singular 　単数形

a bag 　1個のバッグ

a girl 　1人の少女

a room 1部屋

a chair 　1脚のイス

a pen 　1本のペン

an uncle 　1人の叔父

Plural 　複数形

bags 　数個のバッグ

girls 　少女たち

rooms 　数室

chairs 　数脚のイス

pens 　数本のペン

uncles 　数人の叔父

If the noun ends with ch, sh, s, or x, 
then we add an “es” to achieve the 
plural form, instead of an s. The plural 
“es” is pronounced as in “boxes”.

　名詞がch、sh、s、xで終わる場合、複
数形を
　作るには”s”ではなく、”es”を付けま
す。
　複数形の”es”は”boxes”のように発音
　します。

Singular 　単数形

a bus 　1台のバス

a box 　1箱

a brush 　1本の筆



a dress 　1枚のドレス

a match 　1本のマッチ

Plural 　複数形

buses 　数台のバス

boxes 　数箱

brushes 　数本の筆

dresses 　数枚のドレス

matches 　数本のマッチ

We also add the plural “es” to nouns 
that end with o.

　　”o”で終わる名詞にも”es”をつけて
　　複数形を作ります。

Singular 　単数形

a tomato 　1個のトマト

Plural 　複数形

tomatoes 　数個のトマト　

Note: The indefinite articles “a” and 
“an” are not used with nouns in plural 
form.

　注：不定冠詞”a”と”an”は複数形の名
詞には
　使用しません。

Singular (with an article) 　単数形（冠詞と使用）

a boy

a girl

a bus

an uncle

Plural (without an article) 　複数形（冠詞を使用しない）

boys



girls

buses

uncles

Likewise, these articles are not used 
with singular, non - count nouns.

 　同様にこれらの冠詞は単数の
不加算名詞には使用しません。

water 　水

sand 　砂

The definite article “the” “the”　冠詞の定義

We use the definite article “the” 
before a noun, when the noun refers 
to a specific person, place, thing, or 
idea.

　定冠詞”the”は特定の人、場所、物、ア
イデア
　の名前を指す時、名詞の前に置きま
す。

the boy 　その少年

the girl 　その少女

the room 　その部屋

the box 　その箱

the match 　そのマッチ

the boys 　その少年たち

the girls 　その少女たち

the rooms 　その部屋

the boxes 　その箱

the matches 　そのマッチ

Note: The article “the” can be used 
before any noun, whether singular, 
plural, feminine, masculine, or gender 
- neuter.

　注：”the”冠詞は単数形、複数形、女
性、
　男性、中性名詞の前に使用できます。



Masculine, singular 男性、単数

the boy

Feminine, singular 女性、単数

the girl

Masculine, plural 男性、複数

the boys

Feminine, plural 女性、複数

the girls

Object, singular 物、単数

the room

Object, plural 物、複数

the rooms

Gender in the English language 英語での性別

Regarding gender, English nouns can 
be:
1. masculine, for male beings.
2. feminine, for female beings.
3. common, for both male and 
female (student, doctor)
4. neuter, mostly for inanimate 
objects 

　英語の名詞では性別は以下のように
区分され
　ます：
　1. 男性的な存在には男性名詞
　2．女性的な存在には女性名詞
　3．男性、女性両方には普通名詞（学
生、
　　　医師）
　4．無物体には中性名詞

Masculine nouns 　男性名詞

a king 　王

a man 　男

an uncle 　叔父

a boy 　少年



Feminine nouns 　女性名詞

a qeen 　女王

a woman 　女性

an aunt 　叔母

a girl 　少女

Gender - common nouns 　性　‐　普通名詞

a dancer 　舞踊家、ダンサー

a singer 　歌手

a teacher 　先生

a student 　学生

Gender - neuter nouns 　性　‐　中世名詞

a lamp 　ランプ

a pen 　ペン

a map 　マップ

a tree 　木

Lesson 2 レッスン　2

Vocabulary 語彙

orange 　オレンジ

coat 　外套、コート

ice cream 　アイスクリーム



English 　英語

bone 　骨

teach 　教える

dress (v)  　着る

dress (n) 　ドレス

Note: The word “dress” can be used 
both as a noun (a type of clothes) or 
a verb (to put on clothes).

　注：”dress”という単語は名詞（衣服の
一種）
　でもあり、動詞（衣服を着る）でもありま
す。

brush (v) 　塗る

brush (n) 　筆、ブラシ

shoe 　靴

go 　行く

apple 　りんご

coffee 　コーヒー

juice 　ジュース

tea 　紅茶

wear 　着用する、すり減らす

pants 　ズボン、パンツ

shirt 　シャツ

sell 　売る

I 　私

you 　あなた

he 　彼

she 　彼女　



it 　それ

we 　私たち

they 　彼ら

write 　書く

eat 　食べる

speak 　話す

read 　読む

drink (v) 　飲む

drink (n) 　飲み物　

buy 　買う

letter 　手紙、文字

banana 　バナナ

book 　本

water 　水

cake 　ケーキ

milk 　ミルク

hat 　帽子

Subject pronouns 代名詞

Singular 　単数

I 　私

you 　あなた

he 　彼

she 　彼女



it 　それ、あれ

Plural 　複数　

we 　私たち

you 　あなたたち

they 　彼ら

Note: The pronoun “it” is gender 
- neuter, and is used for objects, 
animals, and concepts. The plural of 
“it” is “they”.
The word “I” is always capitalized.

　注：代名詞”it”は中性で物体、動物、概
念
　に用いられます。”it”の複数形
は”they”
です。”I”は常に大文字です。

The verb 動詞

A verb represents an action or 
condition.

　動詞は行動または状態を表します。　

write 　書く

eat 　食べる

speak 　話す　

read 　読む

drink 　飲む

buy 　買う

In English, each sentence must 
include a verb.
There are two types of verbs: 
1. Pure main verbs
2. Auxiliary verbs: be, do, have 
(which may also act like main verb)

　英語では文に動詞を含まなくてはなり
　ません。　
　動詞には二種類あります。
　1．一般動詞
　2．助動詞：be、do、have　（これらは
動詞
としても使われます）

In this lesson, we will look at 
common main verbs only (Present 
Tense).

　　このレッスンでは一般動詞だけ
　　学習します（現在時制）



I write an email 　私は電子メールを書きます

I eat a banana 　私はバナナを食べます

I read a book 　私は本を読みます

I drink water 　私は水を飲みます

Note: The indefinite article “a” or “an” 
is used only before a count noun. 
In the sentence “I drink water,” the 
word “water” is a non - count noun. 

Important! Usually, in English the 
subject comes before the predicate.

　注：不定冠詞の”a”または”an”　
　は加算名詞の前だけに使います。
 ”I drink water”という文では
　”water”は不加算名詞です。
  重要！　通常英語では主語は述部の
前に来ます。

I eat a cake 　私はケーキを食べます

You drink milk あなたはミルクを飲みます　

He buys a hat 　彼は帽子を買います

She sells oranges 　彼女はオレンジを売ります

We wear coats 　私たちはコートを着ます

You speak French 　あなたはフランス語を話します

They like ice-cream 　彼らはアイスクリームが好きです

In the third-person singular (both 
masculine and feminine), in Present 
Tense, we add an s to the verb. 
Note: Each sentence starts with a 
capital letter.

　現在時制の三人称単数（男性・女性名
詞とも）
　の場合、動詞にsを付けます。
　注：各文の文頭は大文字で始まりま
す。

He drinks water 　彼は水を飲みます

She speaks English 　彼女は英語を話します

It eats bones 　それは骨を食べます

Note: We use the pronoun “it” 
instead of “he” or “she”, when 
referring to animals.

　注：動物には”he”あるいは”she”の代
わりに
　代名詞の”it”を用います。



In the third - person singular, if a verb 
ends with “ch”, “s”, or “sh”, we add 
the syllable “es”. This consonant “s” 
is pronounced as /s/ in “books”.
The same rule applies to the plural of 
nouns ending with those consonants 
in the singular. 

　現在時制の三人称単数の場合、動詞
が
　”ch”、”s”、”sh”で終わる場合、”es”音
節
　を追加します。子音”s”は”books”
の”s”と
　同じように発音します。複数名詞にも
　子音で終わる単数名詞と同じルール
が
　適用されます。

He teaches English 　彼は英語を教えます

She brushes a shoe 　彼女は靴を磨きます

She dresses Emily 　彼女はエミリーに服を着せます

In the third-person singular, if a verb 
ends with an o, we add an “es”.  

　三人称単数では”o”で終わる動詞には
　”es”を追加します。

He goes 　彼は行く

She goes 　彼女は行く

Exercise エクササイズ　

Let’s read out loud. 　声を出して読んでください。

I eat a cake.

I eat an orange

I eat apples

I eat a banana

I eat ice cream

You drink water

You drink coffee

You drink juice

You drink tea



You drink milk

She buys a coat

She buys cakes

She buys a book

She buys apples

She buys a dress

He wears a hat

He wears shoes

He wears a coat

He wears pants

He wears a shirt

We sell oranges

We sell cakes

We sell books

We sell hats

We sell bananas

Lesson 3 レッスン　3

Vocabulary 語彙

yes 　はい

no 　いいえ



not 　～でない

to 　～へ、～に

do 　する、行う

supper 　夕食

breakfast 　朝食　

lunch 　昼食

dinner 　夕食、晩餐

egg 　卵

hospital 　病院

school 　学校

prison 　刑務所

synagogue 　ユダヤ教会

church 　教会

mosque 　モスク

mall 　モール、ショッピングセンター

football 　サッカー

basketball 　バスケットボール

handball 　ハンドボール

chess 　チェス

French 　フランス語

German 　ドイツ語

Italian 　イタリア語

Spanish 　スペイン語



newspaper 　新聞

magazine 　雑誌

Internet 　インターネット

blog 　ブログ

website 　ウェブサイト

comedy 　喜劇

tragedy 　悲劇

play (n) 　遊ぶ

story 　物語

does 　する、行う

play (v) 　競技を行う、再生する

beer 　ビール

learn 　習う

rice 　米

bake 　焼く

bread 　パン

sing 　歌う

song 　歌

wine 　ワイン

tennis 　テニス

answer 　答える

question 　質問

Present Tense – negative form 現在時制－否定文



We make the negative form, by 
adding “do not” before the verb.

 　否定文を作るには、 動詞の前に”do 
not”を
　追加します。

I eat breakfast 　私は朝食を食べます

I do not eat breakfast 　私は朝食を食べません

I go to school 　私は学校へ行きます

I do not go to school 　私は学校へ行きません

You speak English  　あなたは英語を話します

You do not speak English 　あなたは英語を話しません

In the third - person singular (“he, 
she, it”), we make the negative form 
by adding “does not” before the verb. 
The “-s” or “-es” at the end of the 
verb is dropped.

　三人称単数（”he、she、it”）では動詞
の前
　に”does not”を追加して否定文を作り
ます。
　動詞の語尾の”-s”あるいは”-es”は取
ります。

He plays football 　彼はサッカーをします

He does not play football 　彼はサッカーをしません

She writes a story 　彼女は物語りを書きます

She does not write a story 　彼女は物語りを書きません

We drink beer 　私たちはビールを飲みます

We do not drink beer 　私たちはビールを飲みません

You learn French 　あなたはフランス語を習います

You do not learn French 　あなたはフランス語を習いません

They read a book 　彼は本を読みます

They do not read a book 　彼は本を読みません

Present Tense – interrogative form 現在時制　-　疑問文



We make the interrogative form, by 
adding “do” at the beginning of the 
sentence.

　疑問文を作るには、文頭に”do”を追加
　します。

I drink milk 　私はミルクを飲みます

Do I drink milk? 　私はミルクを飲みますか？

You eat rice 　あなたは米を食べます

Do you eat rice? 　あなたは米を食べますか？

In the third-person singular (he, she, 
it), we make the interrogative form, by 
adding “does” at the beginning of the 
sentence. The s or es at the end of 
the verb are dropped

　三人称単数（”he、she、it”）で疑問文を
　作るには、文頭に”does”を追加しま
す。
　動詞の語尾にある”s”あるいは”es”は
　取ります。

He bakes bread 　彼はパンを焼きます

Does he bake bread? 　彼はパンを焼きますか？

She sings a song 　彼女は歌を歌います

Does she sing a song? 　彼女は歌を歌いますか？

We drink wine 　私たちはワインを飲みます

Do we drink wine? 　私たちはワインを飲みますか？

You play tennis 　あなたはテニスをします

Do you play tennis? 　あなたはテニスをしますか？

They answer questions 　彼らは質問に答えます

Do they answer questions? 　彼らは質問に答えますか？

Questions and answers 　質問と答え　

Do you drink water? 　あなたは水を飲みますか？

No, I do not drink water. 　いいえ、水は飲みません。

I drink milk. 　私はミルクを飲みます。



Do you eat bananas? 　あなたはバナナを食べますか？

No, I do not eat bananas. 　いいえ、私はバナナを食べません。　

I eat oranges. 　私はオレンジを食べます。

Do you learn French? 　あなたはフランス語を習いますか？

No, I do not learn French. 　いいえ、私はフランスを習いません。

I learn Spanish. 　私はスペイン語を習います。

Do you play football? 　あなたはサッカーをしますか？

No, I do not play football. 　いいえ、私はサッカーをしません。

I play tennis. 　私はテニスをします。

Do you eat bread? 　パンを食べますか？

Yes, I eat bread. 　はい、私はパンを食べます。

Do you write letters? 　あなたは手紙を書きますか？

Yes, I write letters. 　はい、私は手紙を書きます。

Do you teach English? 　あなたは英語を教えますか？

Yes, I teach English. 　はい、私は英語を教えます。

Exercise 　エクササイズ　

Let’s read out loud. 　声を出して読んでください。

You eat breakfast

You eat supper

You eat lunch

You eat dinner

You eat eggs

He goes to school



He goes to hospital

He goes to prison

He goes to synagogue

He goes to church

We do not play football

We do not play basketball

We do not play handball

We do not play tennis

We do not play chess

She learns French

She learns German

She learns English

She learns Spanish 

Do they read newspapers?

Do they read magazines?

Do they read comedies?

Do they read tragedies?

Do they read books?

Lesson 4 レッスン　4

Vocabulary 語彙



fruit 　果物

vegetable 　野菜

animal 　動物

dancer 　舞踊家、ダンサー

farmer 　農夫

baker   パン屋

pear 　梨

grape 　ブドウ

peach 　桃

melon 　メロン

potato 　ジャガイモ

tomato 　トマト

cucumber 　きゅうり

onion 　玉ねぎ　

pea 　エンドウ豆

lion 　ライオン

tiger 　虎

bear 　熊

cat 　猫

dog 　犬

am 　beの一人称単数（助動詞）

a 　1つの、1人の　（不定冠詞）

boy 　少年　



are 　beの二人称単数・各人称の複数（助動
詞）　

girl 　少女

is 　beの三人称単数（助動詞）

man 　男

woman 　女

parents 　両親、父母

men 　manの複数形

women 　womanの複数形

elephant 　象

city 　都市

country 　国

continent 　大陸

mountain 　山

river 　川

driver 　運転手

teacher 　先生

student 　学生、生徒

The verb “be” 動詞　”to be”

The verb “be” is used to indicate a 
state.
As Hamlet said: “To be or not to 
be…”

　“To be”動詞はハムレットが”To be or 
　not to be…”
　（生きるべきか死ぬべきか）と言った
ように状態を示します。

Conjugation of the verb “be” in the 
present tense

　現在時制の”be”動詞活用形



I am 　私は

you are 　あなたは

he is 　彼は

she is 　彼女は

it is 　それは

we are 　私たちは

you are 　あなたたちは

they are 　彼らは

Note: The verb “am” follows the 
pronoun “I”. The verb “are” follows 
the pronouns “you”, “we”, and “they”. 
The verb “is” follows the pronouns 
“he”, “she”, and “it”.

　注：”am”動詞は代名詞”I”の後に置き
ます。
　”are”動詞は代名詞”you”、”we”
、”they”
　の後に置きます。”is”動詞は代名詞
　”he”、”she”、”it”の後に置きます。

I am a girl 　私は少女です

You are a man 　あなたは男性です　

He is a boy 　彼は少年です

She is a woman 　彼女は女性です

We are parents 　私たちは両親です

You are men 　あなたたちは男性です

They are women 　彼女たちは女性です

It is a book 　それは本です

It is an elephant 　それは象です



Note: The words “is” and “are” can 
also follow nouns. For example: 
“New York is a city”.

　注：”is”と”are”は名詞の後に置かれる
　ことがあります。
　例：”New York is a city”.
（ニューヨークは都市です。）

Great Britain is a country 　英国は国です

Asia is a continent 　アジアは大陸です

Mount Everest is a mountain 　マウントエベレストは山です。

The Amazon River is a river 　アマゾン川は川です

Doug is a driver 　ダグは運転手です

Emily is a teacher 　エミリーは先生です

Dan is a student. 　ダンは生徒です

Oranges are fruit 　オレンジは果物です

Potatoes are vegetables 　ジャガイモは野菜です

Lions are animals 　ライオンは動物です

Note: In English, we do not say, “I 
boy”. Instead, we say, “I am a boy”.

　注：英語では”I boy”とは言いません。
　その代りに”I am a boy”（私は少年で
す）
　と言います。

Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　声を出して読んでください。

He is a driver

He is a dancer

He is a farmer

He is a baker

He is a teacher

Oranges are fruit



Pears are fruit.

Grapes are fruit

Peaches are fruit

Melons are fruit

Potatoes are vegetables

Tomatoes are vegetables

Cucumbers are vegetables

Onions are vegetables

Peas are vegetables

Lions are animals

Tigers are animals

Bears are animals

Cats are animals

Dogs are animals

They are girls

They are boys

They are men

They are women

They are students

Lesson 5 レッスン　5



Vocabulary 語彙

film star 　映画スター

dentist 　歯医者

optician 　眼鏡屋

electrician 　電気技師

grocer 　食料雑貨商

greengrocer 　青果商、八百屋

barman 　バーテン

tailor 　仕立て屋、テイラー

shoemaker 　靴屋、製靴業者

leader 　リーダー、指導者

cashier 　現金出納係、レジ係、

technician 　技術者

doctor 　医師

sculptor 　彫刻家

president 　大統領

worker 　労働者　

musician 　音楽家

pianist 　ピアニスト　

singer 　歌手

painter 　画家

writer 　作家

nurse 　看護師



sailor 　水夫

waiter 　ウエーター、給仕

typist 　タイピスト　

journalist 　ジャーナリスト、記者

dealer 　販売業者、ディーラー　

postman 　郵便配達員

policeman 　警官

secretary 　秘書

dressmaker 　裁縫師、洋裁師

importer 　輸入業者

exporter 　輸出業者

actor 　俳優

barber 　床屋

The verb “be” – negative form 動詞”to be” - 否定文

I am not 　私は～ではありません

You are not 　あなたは～ではありません

He is not 　彼は～ではありません

She is not 　彼女は～ではありません

It is not 　それは～ではありません

We are not 　私たちは～ではありません

You are not 　あなたたちは～ではありません

They are not 　彼らは～ではありません

Note: In a negative sentence, we add 
the word “not” after the verb.

　注：否定文では”not”を動詞の後に置
きます。



I am a worker 　私は労働者です

I am not a worker 　私は労働者ではありません

You are a baker 　あなたはパン屋です

You are not a baker 　あなたはパン屋ではありません

He is a musician 　彼は音楽家です。

He is not a musician 　彼は音楽家ではありません

She is a pianist 　彼女はピアニストです

She is not a pianist 　彼女はピアニストではありません

We are drivers 　私たちは運転手です

We are not drivers 　私たちは運転手ではありません

You are singers 　私たちは歌手です

You are not singers 　私たちは歌手ではありません

They are painters 　彼らは画家です

They are not painters 　彼らは画家ではありません

Dan is a writer 　ダンは作家です

Dan is not a writer 　ダンは作家ではありません

Emily is a nurse 　エミリーは看護師です

Emily is not a nurse 　エミリーは看護師ではありません

The verb “be” – interrogative form 動詞”to be” - 疑問文

Am I? 　私は～ですか？

Are you? 　あなたは～ですか？

Is he? 　彼は～ですか？

Is she? 　彼女は～ですか？



Is it? 　それは～ですか？

Are we? 　私たちは～ですか？

Are you? 　あなたたちは～ですか？

Are they? 　彼らは～ですか？

Note: In interrogative sentences, we 
change the order of the words. The 
verb comes before the subject.

　注：否定文では単語の順番が変わりま
す。
　動詞を主語の前に置きます。

I am a teacher. 　私は先生です。

Am I a teacher? 　私は先生ですか？

You are a sailor. 　あなたは水夫です。

Are you a sailor? 　あなたは水夫ですか？

He is a waiter. 　彼はウェーターです。

Is he a waiter? 　彼はウェーターですか？

She is a typist. 　彼女はタイピストです。

Is she a typist? 　彼女はタイピストですか？

We are journalists. 　私たちはジャーナリストです。

Are we journalists? 　私たちはジャーナリストですか？　

You are drivers. 　あなたたちは運転手です。

Are you drivers? 　あなたたちは運転手ですか？

They are dealers. 　彼らは販売業者です。

Are they dealers? 　彼らは販売業者ですか？

Questions and answers 　質問と答え

Are you a teacher? 　あなたは先生ですか？

No ,I am not.  　いいえ、違います。



I am a student. 　私は生徒です。

Are you a postman? 　あなたは郵便配達員ですか？

No ,I am not. 　いいえ、違います。

I am a policeman. 　私は警官です。

Are you a secretary? 　あなたは秘書ですか？　

No ,I am not. 　いいえ、違います。

I am a dressmaker. 　私は裁縫師です。

Are you an importer? 　あなたは輸入業者ですか？

No ,I am not. 　いいえ、違います。

I am an exporter. 　私は輸出業者です。

Is he an actor? 　彼は俳優ですか？

No ,he is not. 　いいえ、違います。　　

He is a musician. 　彼は音楽家です。

Is he a barber? 　彼は床屋ですか？

No ,he is not. 　いいえ、違います。

He is a gardener. 　彼は庭師です。

Is she a film star? 　彼女は映画スターですか？　

No ,she is not. 　いいえ、違います。

She is a singer. 　彼女は歌手です。

Is he a dentist? 　彼は歯医者ですか？

No ,he is not. 　いいえ、違います。

He is an optician.   彼は眼鏡屋です。

Is Dan a driver? 　ダンは運転手ですか？



No ,he is not. 　いいえ、違います。

He is an electrician. 　彼は電気技師です。

Is Mark a grocer?   マークは食料雑貨商ですか？

No ,he is not. 　いいえ、違います。

He is a greengrocer. 　彼は八百屋です。

Is Doug a barman? 　ダグはバーテンですか？

No ,he is not. 　いいえ、違います。

He is a waiter. 　彼はウェーターです。

Is this man a tailor? 　この男性は仕立て屋ですか？

No ,he is not. 　いいえ、違います。

He is a shoemaker. 　彼は製靴業者です。

Is this woman a secretary? 　この女性は秘書ですか？

No ,she is not. 　いいえ、違います。

She is a singer. 　彼女は歌手です。

Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　声を出して読んでください。

Is he a leader?

Is he a dealer?

Is he a grocer?

Is he a greengrocer?

Is he an exporter?

Are you a soldier?

Are you a cashier?



Are you a technician?

Are you an optician?

Are you an electrician?

Dan is not a doctor

Dan is not an actor

Dan is not a sailor

Dan is not a tailor

Dan is not a sculptor

He is not a student

He is not a president

He is not a patient

He is not an agent

He is not a teacher

I am not a dentist

I am not typist

I am not chemist

I am not journalist

I am not tourist

Here are some common noun 
suffixes used to indicate professions.

　以下は職業を表す名詞
の接尾辞の例です。

The suffix “er” 接尾辞　”er”

baker   パン屋

barber 　床屋



dealer 　販売業者

driver 　運転手

exporter 　輸出業者

gardener 　庭師

leader 　指導者

miner 　鉱夫

painter 　画家

porter 　赤帽、ポーター　　

publisher 　出版社

singer 　歌手

teller 　金銭出納係、窓口　

waiter 　ウェーター

worker 　労働者　

web designer 　ウェブデザイナー

The suffix “or” 接尾辞 “or”

actor   俳優

collector 　コレクター

conductor 　案内人、指揮者

decorator 　(室内)装飾者

director 　管理者、監督

doctor 　医師

editor 　編集長

governor 　知事



inspector 　検査官

investor 　投資家

professor 教授

sailor 　水夫

sculptor 　彫刻家

tailor 　仕立て屋

translator 　翻訳者　

The suffix “ist” 接尾辞　”ist”

artist 　芸術家　

chemist 　化学者、薬剤師

dentist 　歯科医

economist 　経済学者　

guitarist 　ギタリスト

industrialist 　産業家、実業家

journalist 　ジャーナリスト、記者　

manicurist 　マニキュア師

pianist 　ピアニスト　

scientist 　科学者

specialist 　スペシャリスト、専門職

tourist 　観光客　

typist 　タイピスト　

The suffix “ian” 接尾辞　”ian”　

civilian 　一般人、文民　



comedian 　コメディアン　

guardian 　保護者、後見人　

historian 　歴史学者　

librarian 　司書、図書館員　

musician 　音楽家

pedestrian 　歩行者

politician 　政治家

theologian 　神学者

vegetarian 　菜食主義者、ベジタリアン

veterinarian 　獣医

The suffix “-man” for a man, or 
“-woman” for a woman..., or 
sometimes just “person”. Here are 
some examples:

　男性を示す接尾辞、”-man”、女性を示
す
　接尾辞、””-woman”、両方を示す接尾
辞、　
　”person”があります。以下はその例で
す：

barman 　バーテン

businessman / businesswoman 　男性実業家/女性実業家　

chairman 　議長

congressman 　連邦議会議員　

councilman 　市（町、村）会議員　

craftsman 　職人

fireman 　消防士

fisherman 　漁夫、魚師

policeman / policewoman 　警察官



postman 　郵便配達員

salesman / salesperson 　販売係、店員

sportsman 　スポーツマン

statesman 　政治家

watchman 　夜警、警備員

The suffix “ant” or “ent” 接尾辞　”ant”　、”ent”

accountant 　会計士

agent 　代理店

assistant 　アシスタント　

attendant 　付き添い人、接客係、出席者　

consultant 　コンサルタント

correspondent 　特派員

immigrant 　移民

merchant 　商人

president 　大統領

sergeant 　軍曹

student 　学生

Lesson 6 レッスン　6

Vocabulary 語彙

this 　この



that 　その

pen 　ペン

pencil 　鉛筆

brush 　筆、ブラシ

star 　星

cloud 　雲

map 　地図

these 　これら

those 　それら、あれら

horse 　馬

cow 　牛

eraser 　消しゴム

ruler 　定規

bed 　ベット

chair 　イス

table 　テーブル

desk 　机

cell phone (US) ( mobile pone (UK)) 　携帯電話（cell phone （米））　（mobile 
phone 
   （英））

glass 　ガラス、コップ

cup 　カップ、茶碗

picture 　写真、絵画

on  ~の上に



wall 　壁

broom 　ほうき

in 　~の中に

room 　部屋

monkey 　サル

zoo 　動物園

flower 　花

bicycle 　自転車

window 　窓

door 　ドア

gate 　門

scarf 　スカーフ、襟巻

or 　あるいは、さもなければ

bee 　蜂

fly 　飛ぶ

boot 　ブーツ

The words “this” and “that” “this”　と　”that”

The words “this” and “that” are 
followed by the verb “is”.
We use “this is”, when touching 
something or pointing to something 
nearby.

　”this”と”that”は動詞”is”が後ろに付き
ます。
　何かに触れている時、または近くにあ
る
　ものを指している時”this is”を使用し
ます。

This is a pen 　これはペンです。

This is a pencil 　これは鉛筆です。

This is a coat 　これはコートです。



This is a brush 　これは筆です。

We use “that is”, when pointing to 
something far away.

　少し遠くにあるものを指す時、”that is”
を
　使用します。

That is a star 　それは星です。

That is a cloud 　それは雲です。

That is a map 　それは地図です。

That is an egg 　それは卵です。

The word “these” is the plural form of 
“this”. 
The word “those” is the plural form of 
“that”.
These words are followed by the 
auxiliary verb “are”.

　”these”は”this”の複数形です。
　”those”は”that”の複数形です。
　これらの単語は助動詞”are”が後ろに
　付きます。

Note: The words “this”, “that”, 
“these”, and “those” are common for 
both the masculine and feminine, as 
well as for the neuter.

　注：”this”、”that”、”these”、”those”
　は男性、女性、中性名詞に共通して
　使用できます。

Those are pencils 　それらは鉛筆です。

Those are stars 　それらは星です。

These are maps 　それらは地図です。

These are brushes 　それらは筆です。

This is a horse 　これは馬です。

This is a cow 　これは牛です。

That is a boy 　それは少年です。

That is a girl 　それは少女です。

Those are eggs 　それらは卵です。

Those are pens 　それらはペンです。



This is a boy. 　これは少年です。

That is a boy 　それは少年です。

These are boys 　これらは少年達です。

Those are boys 　それらは少年達です。

Note: Pay attention to the difference 
between “This is a boy” and “This 
boy…”

　注：”This is a boy”（これは少年です）
と
　”This boy…”（この少年…）の違いに
　気を付けてください。

The words “this”, “that”, “these”, and 
“those” - interrogative form

疑問文の　”this”、”that”、”these”、
“those”

In an interrogative sentence, we 
change the order of the words. The 
verb appears before the subject.

　疑問文では単語の順番を変更します。
　動詞が主語の前に置かれます。

This is a pen. 　これはペンです。　

Is this a pen? 　これはペンですか？

That is an eraser. 　　これは消しゴムです。

Is that an eraser? 　　これは消しゴムですか？

These are horses. 　これらは馬です。

Are these horses? 　これらは馬ですか？

Those are cows. 　それらは牛です。

Are those cows? 　それらは牛ですか？

The words “this”, “that”, “these”, and 
“those” - negative form

否定文の　”this”、”that”、”these”、
“those”

In negative sentences, we add the 
word “not” after the verb.

　否定文では”not”を動詞の後に付けま
す。

This is a pen. 　これはペンです。　

This is not a pen 　これはペンではありません。　



That is a ruler. 　それは定規です。

That is not a ruler 　それは定規ではありません。

The word “or” 接続詞　”or”

The word “or” is used between two or 
more options.

   “or”という単語は2つ以上のオプション
　　　から1つを選ぶ時に使用します。　

Is this a chair or a bed? これはイスですか、それともベッドです
か？

It is a chair. 　イスです。

Is this a table or a desk? 　　これはテーブルですか、それとも机で
すか？

It is a desk. 　机です。

Is this an MP3 or a cell phone? 　これはMP3ですか、それとも携帯電話
です
か？

It is an MP3. 　MP3です。

Is that a glass or a cup? それはコップですか、それとも茶碗です
か？

It is a glass. 　コップです。

Is that an orange or an apple? 　それはオレンジですか、それともりんご
です
か？

It is an apple. 　リンゴです。

Is that a man or a woman? その人は男性ですか、それとも女性で
すか

It is a man. 　女性です。

The phrases “There is” and “There 
are”

“There is”と”There are”フレーズ



“There is” and “There are” indicate 
that something exists or is present.

　”There is”と”There are”は存在する
　もの、有るものを示します。

We use “There is” to indicate 
something in the singular form.

　”There is”は何かが単数であることを
　示します。

There is a picture on the wall. 　絵画が壁の上にあります。

There is a broom in the room. 　ほうきが部屋の中にあります。

Is there a map on the wall? 　壁の上に地図がありますか？

Is there a coat in the room? 　コートが部屋の中にありますか？

We use “There are” to indicate 
something in the plural form.

　”There are”は何かが複数であること
を
　示します。

There are books on the table. テーブルの上に数冊の本があります。

Are there books on the table? テーブルの上に数冊の本があります
か？

There are monkeys in the zoo. 動物園には数匹のサルがいます。

Are there tigers in the zoo? 動物園には数匹の虎がいますか？

Questions and answers 　質問と答え

Is this a pencil? 　これは鉛筆ですか？

No ,this not a pencil. 　いいえ、鉛筆ではありません。

This is a pen. 　これはペンです。

Is this a book? 　これは本ですか？

No ,this is not a book. 　いいえ、本ではありません。

This is a magazine. 　これは雑誌です。

Is this a horse? 　これは馬ですか？

No ,this is not a horse. 　いいえ、馬ではありません。　

This is a cow. 　これは牛です。



Is this a cell phone? 　これは携帯電話ですか？

No ,this is not a cell phone. 　いいえ、携帯電話ではありません。

This is an MP3. 　これはMP3です。

Is this an apple? 　これはリンゴですか？

No ,this is not an apple. 　いいえ、リンゴではありません。

This is an orange. 　これはオレンジです。

Exercise エクササイズ　

Let’s read out loud. 　声に出して読んでください。

This is a pen

This is a notebook

This is a picture

This is a flower

This is a mountain

That is a desk

That is a chair

That is a cell phone

That is a table

That is a map

Is this a bicycle?

Is this a brush?

Is this a glass?

Is this a ruler?

Is this a broom?



This is not a window

This is not a door

This is not a gate

This is not a coat

This is not a scarf

Is that a dog or a cat?

Is that a bee or a fly?

Is that a ruler or an eraser?

Is that a pear or a peach?

Is that a boot or a shoe?

Lesson 7 レッスン　7

Vocabulary 語彙

at 　
　～に、～で

in 　～の中に（で）、～で

from 　から

of 　～の、～の所有する

near 　近く

under 　～の下に

for 　～のために、～にとって



behind 　後ろに

between 　～の間に（で）

in front of   ～の前に　　

over 　～の上方に（の）

many 　多くの

trees 　木

forest 　森

cold 　冷たい、寒い

night 　夜　

office 　オフィス、事務所

day 　日、1日

piece 　断片、1個

garden 　庭

stand 　立つ

like 　好む

present, gift 　プレゼント、贈り物　

sit 　座る　

where 　どこに（へ、で）

drawer 　引き出し

box 　箱

kitchen 　台所

bathroom 　浴室　

child 　子供



bedroom 　寝室

dining - room 　食堂、ダイニングルーム

living - room 　居間、リビングルーム

who 　誰が（を、に）

here 　ここ

there 　そこ　

Mr 　～様、～さん、～殿、～氏

Mrs 　～様、～さん、～夫人

and 　と、および

Prepositions 前置詞

A preposition is a word that indicates 
a certain relationship, either between 
two nouns, or between a verb and a 
noun.

　前置詞は二つの名詞または動詞と
　名詞の間の関係を示します。

on 　～の上に

in 　～の中に（で）、～で

at 　～に、～で

to 　～へ、～に

from 　から

of 　～の、～の所有する

near 　近く

under 　～の下に

for 　～のために、～にとって

behind 　後ろに

between 　～の間に（で）



in front of 　～の前に　　

over 　～の上方に（の）

The preposition “on” 　前置詞”on”

The picture is on the wall 　壁の上にある絵画

The lamp is on the desk 　机の上にあるランプ

The book is on the table 　　テーブルの上にある本

The preposition “in” 　前置詞”in”

The lion is in the zoo 　動物園の中にライオンがいます

There are many trees in the forest 　森の中に多くの木があります

There is a boy in the room 　部屋の中に少年がいます

The preposition “at” 　前置詞”at”

I teach Spanish at school 　学校でスペイン語を教えています

It is cold at night 　夜になると寒い

The secretary is at the office 　秘書はオフィスにいます

The preposition “to” 　前置詞”to”

He goes to school 　彼は学校へ行く

He writes a letter to his parents 　彼は両親に手紙を書く

Dan goes to the zoo 　ダンは動物園に行く

The preposition “from” 　前置詞”from”

I come from Los Angeles 　ロスアンゼルスから来ます

He takes the book from the table 　彼はテーブルから本を取る

This bicycle is from Italy 　この自転車はイタリア製です

The preposition “of” 　前置詞”of”



I drink a glass of water 　コップの水を飲みます

He eats a piece of bread 　一切れのパンを食べます

The preposition “near” 　前置詞”near”

The garden is near the school 　庭は学校の近くです

The chair is near the window 　イスは窓の近くです

He stands near the door 　彼はドアの近くに立ちます　

The preposition “under” 　前置詞”under”

The shoes are under the bed 　靴はベッドの下にあります

The broom is under the table 　ほうきはテーブルの下にあります

The pen is under the book 　本はペンの下にあります

The preposition “for” 　前置詞”for”

I like tea for breakfast 　朝食用に紅茶を好みます

This present is for Dan 　この贈り物はダンのためです

The book is for you 　この本はあなたのためです

The preposition “behind” 　前置詞”behind”

The coat is behind the door 　コートはドアの後ろにあります

The chairs are behind the desk 　イスは机の後ろにあります　

The preposition “between” 　前置詞”between”

The broom is between the chair and 
the desk

　ほうきはイスと机の間にあります

The picture is between the door and 
the window

　絵画はドアと窓の間にあります

The mall (shopping center) is between 
the school and the hospital

　ショッピングセンターは学校と病院の
間に
　あります



The preposition “in front of” 　前置詞”in front of”

Dan sits in front of the teacher  　ダンは先生の前に座ります

The teacher is in front of the 
classroom

　先生はクラスの前ににいます

The bicycle is in front of the hospital 　自転車は病院の前にあります

Question words 疑問詞

where? 　どこですか？

who? 　誰ですか？

what? 　何ですか？

how? 　どうですか？

The question word “where” 　疑問詞”where”

Where is the book? 　本はどこですか？

The book is on the table. 　本はテーブルの上です。

Where is the pen? 　ペンはどこですか？

It is in the drawer. 　引き出しの中です。

Where is the pencil? 　鉛筆はどこですか？

It is near the box. 　箱の近くです。

Where is the broom? 　ほうきはどこですか？

It is near the kitchen. 　台所の近くです。

Where is Emily? 　エミリーはどこですか？

She is in the bathroom. 　彼女は浴室にいます。

Where is the child? 　子供はどこですか？　

He is in the bedroom. 　彼は寝室にいます。

Where are the women? 　女性はどこですか？



They are in the dining-room. 　彼女達は食堂にいます。

Where are the men? 　男性はどこですか？

They are in the living-room. 　彼らは居間にいます。

Where is the picture? 　写真はどこですか？

It is between the door and the 
window.

　ドアと窓の間にあります。

The question word “who” 　疑問詞”who”

Who is here? 　誰がここにいますか？

Who is there? 　誰がそこにいますか？

Who are you? 　あなたは誰ですか？

I am Doug. 　私はダグです。

Who is he? 　彼は誰ですか？

He is Bob Brown. 　彼はボブ・ブラウンです。

Who is this man? 　この男性は誰ですか？

He is Mr. Stevenson. 　彼はスティーブンソンさんです。

Who is this woman? 　この女性は誰ですか？

She is Mrs. Stevenson. 　彼女はスティーブンソン夫人です。

Who are these men? 　これらの男性は誰ですか？　

They are Mr. Smith and Mr. Jones. 　彼らはスミスさんとジョーンズさんで
す。

Note: The word “Mr.” is an 
abbreviation of “Mister”. The 
word “Mrs.” is an abbreviation of 
“Mistress”, but it is pronounced 
“Misses”.

　注：”Mr.”は”Mister”の省略で
す。”Mrs.”
　は”Mistress”の省略です
が、”Misses”
　と発音します。

The conjunction “and” 接続詞 “and”



The conjunction “and” is used to 
connect two words or sentences.

　接続詞の”and”は2つの単語や文を
　つなげるために使用します。

He is in the kitchen, and she is in the 
office.

　　彼は台所にいました、そして彼女は
　　事務所にいました。

The book is on the table, and the pen 
is on the desk.

　本はテーブルの上にあり、そしてペン
は
　机の上にあります。

The boy and the girl are in the room. 　少年と少女は部屋にいます。

Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　声に出して読みましょう。

The lamp is near the table

The lamp is on the table

The lamp is under the table

The lamp is behind the table

The lamp is over the table

The garden is in front of the school

The pupil is in front of the teacher

The chair is in front of the desk.

The bicycle is in front of the hospital.

The broom is in front of the room

The shoes are under the bed

The shoes are in the drawer

The shoes are on the chair

The shoes are behind the table



The shoes are near the door

Who is he?

Who is this man?

Who is this girl?

Who is here?

Who is there?

Where are the children?

Where are the men?

Where are the musicians?

Where are the nurses?

Where are the women?

Lesson 8 レッスン　8

Vocabulary 語彙

what 　何

lamp 　ランプ

candle 　ろうそく

curtain 　カーテン

carpet 　じゅうたん

camera 　カメラ

skirt 　スカート



sweater 　セーター

raincoat 　レインコート

sock 　靴下

jacket 　ジャケット

suit 　スーツ

glove 　手袋

blouse 　ブラウス

tie 　ネクタイ

handkerchief 　ハンカチーフ

clothes 　服

slipper 　スリッパ

sandal 　サンダル

pajamas 　パジャマ

jeans 　ジーパン

sleeves 　袖

shorts 　半ズボン、ショーツ

director 　管理者、重役　

assistant 　アシスタント

merchant 　商人

town 　町

businessman 　実業家

librarian 　司書、図書館員

actress 　女優



car 　車

bus 　バス

house 　家

ship 　船

boat 　ボート

train 　列車

cottage 　コテージ、小別荘

castle 　城

tower 　塔、タワー

palace 　宮殿

The question word “what” 疑問詞　”what”

Note: The question “What is this?” is 
answered with “This is…” or “It is…”
“What is that?” is answered with 
“That is…” or “It is…”

　注：疑問文”What is this?”には
　”This is…”（これは…）または”It is…” 
  （それは…）で答えます。”What is 
that?”
　には”That is…”（あれは…）または”It 
is…” 
  （それは…）で答えます。

What is this? 　これは何ですか？

This is a lamp. 　これはランプです。

What is this? 　これは何ですか？

This is a candle. 　これはろうそくです。

What is this? 　これは何ですか？

This is a curtain. 　これはカーテンです。

What is this? 　これは何ですか？

It is a carpet. 　それはカーペットです。



What is this? 　これは何ですか？

It is a camera. 　それはカメラです。

The contractions “it’s” and “what’s” 短縮形、”it’s”　と　”what’s”

The word “what’s” is the contracted 
form of “what is”, and the word “it’s” 
is the contracted form of “it is”. 
The i in “is” is replaced by an 
apostrophe.

　”what’s”は”what is”の短縮形で
　”it’s”は”it is”の短縮形です。　”is”の
　i はアポストロフィーに取り換えらえま
す。

What's this?   これは何ですか?

It's a skirt.  　それはスカートです。

What's this? 　これは何ですか

It's a sweater. 　それはセーターです。

What's that? 　それは何ですか

It's a raincoat. 　それはレインコートです。

What's that? 　それは何ですか

It's a sock. 　それはソックスです。

What's that? 　それは何ですか

It's a jacket. 　それはジャケットです。

Note: The question “What are 
these?” is answered with “These 
are…”. 
“What are those?” is answered with 
“Those are…”.

　注：”What are these?”の質問は
　”These are…”で答えます。
　”What are those?”の質問は
　”Those are…”で答えます。

What are these? 　これらは何ですか？

These are suits. 　これらはスーツです。

What are these? 　これらは何ですか？

These are gloves. 　これらは手袋です。



What are these? 　これらは何ですか？

These are blouses. 　これらはブラウスです。

What are those? 　それらは何ですか？

Those are ties. 　それらはネクタイです。

What are those? 　それらは何ですか？

Those are handkerchiefs. 　それらはハンカチです。　

Note: In some of the following 
examples, the phrase “What is…” 
is used to ask about a person’s 
profession. 

　　注：次の例の”What is…”フレーズ
　　は職業について質問しています。

What is Dan? 　ダンの職業は何ですか？

Dan is a director. 　ダンは重役です。

What is Emily? 　エミリーの職業は何ですか？

She is an assistant. 　彼女はアシスタントです。　

What are Doug and Johnny? 　ダグとジョニーの職業は何ですか？

They are merchants. 　彼らは商人です。

What is New York? 　ニューヨークとは何ですか・

New York is a city. 　ニューヨークは都市です。

What is France? 　フランスとは何ですか？

France is a country. 　フランスは国です。

What is Europe? 　ヨーロッパとは何ですか？

Europe is a continent. 　ヨーロッパは大陸です。

What is that man? 　その男性の職業は何ですか？

He is a businessman. 　彼は実業家です。

What is that woman? 　その女性の職業は何ですか？



She is a librarian. 　彼女は司書です。

What is that girl? 　その少女の職業は何ですか？

She is an actress. 　　彼女は女優です。

Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　声を出して読んでください。

What is France?

It is a country

What is Italy?

It is a country

What is Germany?

It is a country

What is Spain?

It is a country

What is Portugal?

It is a country

What is this? It is a car

What is this? It is bus

What is this? It is train

What is this? It is ship

What is this? It is boat

What is that? It is a house

What is that? It is cottage

What is that? It is castle



What is that? It is tower

What is that? It is palace

What are these? These are jeans

What are these? These are trousers

What are these? These are gloves

What are these? These are sleeves

What are these? These are shorts

What are these? These are clothes

What are these? These are slippers

What are these? These are sandals

What are these? These are pajamas

What are these? These are shoes

Lesson 9 レッスン　9

Vocabulary 語彙

how 　いかに、どのように

weather 　天気

today 　今日

old 　古い、年取った

building 　建物

open 　開く



how many 　いくつ、いくら

finger 　指

hand 　手

minute 　分

hour 　時間

month 　月

year 　年

meter 　メートル

kilometer 　キロメートル

cent 　セント　

dollar 　ドル

want 　欲しい、欲する

times 　回数、掛ける　

how much 　いくら、どれくらい

weigh 　量る

five 　五

plus 　プラスの、を加えた

six 　六

two 　二

three 　三

four 　四

minus 　マイナスの、を引いた

one 　一



divide 　割る

how long 　（月日、日時が）どれくらい

heavy 　重い

tall 　高い、背が高い

far 　遠い

seven 　七

wide 　広い

high 　高い

large 　大きい、広い

big 　大きい、成長した

ladder 　はしご

Numbers 数

one 　一

two 　二

three 　三

four 　四

five 　五

six 　六

seven 　七

eight 　八

nine 　九

ten 　十

Examples 　例



I have one car 　私は一台の車を持っています

There are two beds in the room 　部屋には二台のベットがあります

I eat three times a day 　一日三回食べます

There are four weeks in a month 　　１月は四週間です

There are five fingers on one hand 　手には指が五本あります

There are six girls in the room 　部屋には六人の少女がいます

There are seven days in a week 　1週間は七日あります

There are eight pens in the box 　箱の中に八本のペンがあります

I buy nine books 　　九冊の本を買います

There are ten rooms in the palace 　宮殿には十部屋あります

The question word “how” 疑問詞　”how”

The word “how” usually means “in 
what way”. However, when used 
together with certain other words, its 
meaning changes.

　”how”は通常”どのように”という意味で
すが、
　他の単語を使用すると意味が変わる
こと
　があります。

How many? 　いくつ、いくら

How much? 　いくつ、いくら

How long? (length)   どれくらい（の長さ）？

How long? (time) 　どれくらい（の期間）？

How tall? 　どれくらい高い？

How heavy? 　どれくらい重い？

How wide? 　どれくらい広い？

How big? 　どれくらい大きい？

How far? 　どれくらい遠い？



How is that? 　どういうわけですか？

How is he? 　彼はどうしていますか？

How are you?   お元気ですか？　

How do you do? 　初めまして、こんにちは

How is the weather today? 　今日の天気はどうですか？

How old are you? 　あなたは何歳ですか？

How old is that building? 　あの建物はどれくらい古いですか？

How do you like it? 　どうですか？

How do you open the window? 　窓はどう開けますか？

How do you go to school? 　どうやって学校に行きますか？

The question phrases “how much” 
and “how many”

　疑問文　”how much”と”how many”
 

We use “how many” with count 
nouns.

　”how many”は加算名詞に使用しま
す。

How many fingers are there in a 
hand?

　１つの手は何本の指がありますか？

How many days are there in a week? 　１週間は何日ありますか？

How many minutes are there in an 
hour?

　１時間は何分ありますか？

How many months are there in a 
year?

　１年は何か月ありますか？

How many meters are there in one 
kilometer?

　１キロメートルは何メートルですか？

How many cents are there in one 
dollar?

　1ドルは何セントですか？

How many blouses do you want? 　何枚のブラウスが欲しいですか？

How many times a day do you eat? 　１日に何回食べますか？



We use “how much” with non-count 
nouns.

　”how much”は不加算名詞に使用し
ます。

How much is it? 　いくらですか？

How much is this tie? 　このネクタイはいくらですか？

How much do you want? 　いくら欲しいですか？

How much do you weigh? 　あなたの体重はどれくらいですか？

How much is five plus six? 　５足す6はいくつですか？

How much is two times three? 　２掛ける３はいくつですか？

How much is four minus one? 　４引く１はいくつですか？

How much is six divided by two? 　６割る２はいくつですか？

How much are these bananas? 　これらのバナナはいくらですか？

Here are some examples of 
adjectives that are used with the 
question word “how”.

　以下は”how”疑問詞に使用される形
容詞の
　例です。

How long is this room? 　この部屋はどれくらい長いですか？

How heavy is the box? 　この箱はどれくらい重いですか？

How tall are you? 　あなたの身長はどれくらいですか？

How far is Los Angeles from New 
York?

　ロスアンゼルスからニューヨークまで
の
　距離はどれくらいですか？

How far is it to the zoo? 　動物園にはどれくらいの距離がありま
すか？

How high is Mount Everest? 　エベレスト山はどれくらい高いです
か？

Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　声を出して読んでください。

How do you do?



How do you open the window?

How do you go to school?

How do you speak English?

How do you like it?

How many hats do you want?

How many pencils do you want?

How many letters do you want?

How many oranges do you want?

How many magazines do you want?

How many chairs are there in the 
room?

How many students are there in the 
school?

How many meters are there in one 
kilometer?

How many pennies are there in one 
dollar?

How many hours are there in a day?

How much is six plus five?

How much is five times six?

How much is seven minus four?

How much is that car?

How much is a cup of tea?

How long is the room?

How wide is the door?



How high is the mountain?

How large is the hospital?

How big is the ladder?

Lesson 10 レッスン　10

Vocabulary 語彙

my 　私の

your 　あなたの

his 　彼の

her 　彼女の

our 　私たちの

their 　彼らの

its 　その

lace 　レース

cousin 　いとこ

brother 　兄弟

sister 　姉妹

wife 　妻

smell 　匂いがする、匂いを嗅ぐ　

with 　と一緒に

nose  　鼻　



hear 　聞く

ear 　耳　

mouth 　口

walk 　歩く

feet 　足

see 　見る

eye 　目

feel 　感じる

whose 　誰の

umbrella 　傘

stick 　棒

clock 　時計

watch 　腕時計、観察する

ring 　指輪

glasses 　めがね

son 　息子

daughter 　娘

nephew 　甥

uncle 　叔父

aunt 　叔母

niece 　姪

husband 　夫

apron 　エプロン



overall 　野良着、オーバーオール

cardigan 　カーディガン

Possessive adjectives 所有格（所有形容詞）

A possessive adjective indicates 
possession by someone.

　　所有格は人やものに所有される
　　ことを示します

my 　私の

your 　あなたの

his 　彼の

her 　彼女の

its 　その

our 　私たちの

your 　あなたたちの

their 　彼らの

Note: Possessive adjectives are 
followed by nouns.

　注：所有格の後ろには名詞が付きま
す。

This is my dress 　これは私のドレスです

This is your shirt 　これはあなたのシャツです

This is his hat 　これは彼の帽子です

This is her skirt 　これは彼女のスカートです

These are our sandals. 　これらは私たちのサンダルです

These are your shorts    これらはあなたたちの半ズボンです

These are their laces 　これらは彼らのレースです

Note: The word “your” can indicate 
possession by a singular “you” or a 
plural “you”.

　注：”your”は単数の”you”あるいは
　複数の”you”の所有格を示します。



Who is he? 　彼は誰ですか？

He is my cousin. 　彼は私のいとこです。

Who is he? 　彼は誰ですか？

He is our brother. 　彼は私の兄弟です。

Who is she? 　彼女は誰ですか？

She is their sister. 　彼女は私の姉妹です。

Who are they? 　彼ら（彼女達）は誰ですか？

They are his brothers. 　彼らは彼の兄弟です。

They are her sisters. 　彼女達は彼女の姉妹です。

They are your cousins. 　　彼らはあなたのいとこです。

Is this your table? 　これはあなたのテーブルですか？

No, it is not my table. 　いいえ、私のテーブルではありませ
ん。

Is this her chair? 　これは彼女のイスですか？

Yes, it is her chair. 　はい、これは彼女のイスです。

Is this his wife? 　彼女は彼の妻ですか？

Yes, she is his wife. 　はい、彼女は彼の妻です。

I smell with my nose. 　　私は私の鼻で匂いを嗅ぎます。

You hear with your ears. 　あなたはあなたの耳で聞きます。

He speaks with his mouth. 　彼は彼の口で話します。

She walks with her feet. 　彼女は彼女の足で歩きます。

We see with our eyes. 　私たちは私たちの目で見ます。

They feel with their hands. 　彼らは彼らの手で感じます。

The question word “whose” 質問に使う単語　whose　



Whose umbrella is this? 　これは誰の傘ですか？

It is my umbrella. 　それは私の傘です。

Whose stick is that? 　それは誰の棒ですか？

It is your stick.  　それはあなたの棒です。

Whose watch is it? 　それは誰の腕時計ですか？

It is his watch. 　それは彼の腕時計です。

Whose clock is it? 　それは誰の時計ですか？

It is our clock. 　それは私たちの時計です。

Whose ring is this? 　これは誰の指輪ですか？

It is her ring. 　それは彼女の指輪です。

Whose glasses are these? 　それらは誰のめがねですか？

These are their glasses. 　これらは彼らのめがねです。

Exercise エクササイズ　

Let’s read out loud. 　声に出して読んでください。

This is my son

This is my daughter

This is my brother

This is my sister

This is my cousin

Is this your nephew?

Is this your uncle?

Is this your aunt?

Is this your niece?



Is this your husband?

Whose umbrella is that?

Whose broom is that?

Whose table is that?

Whose chair is that?

Whose picture is that?

This is your shirt

This is your apron

This is your overall

This is your cardigan

This is your dress

These are my sandals

These are your sandals

These are his sandals

These are our sandals

These are their sandals

Lesson 11 レッスン　１１

Vocabulary 語彙

have 　持っている、身につけている

has 　持っている、身につけている



mother 　母

father 　父

friend 　友達

grandfather 　祖父

grandmother 　祖母

grandson 　孫息子

granddaughter 　孫娘

family 　家族

relative 　親戚

grandchildren 　孫

I have 　私は～を持っています

some 　いくらかの

salt 　塩

any 　どんな…でも、それほどの

shelf 　棚

vase 　花瓶

biscuit 　ビスケット

fork 　フォーク

spoon 　スプーン

plate 　皿

money 　金

time 　時間

soup 　スープ



food 　食べ物

boyfriend   ボーイフレンド

girlfriend 　ガールフレンド

brother-in-law 　義理の兄弟

sister-in-law 　義理の姉妹

step mother 　継母

mother-in-law 　義母、しゅうとめ

post cards 　絵葉書

diamond 　ダイアモンド　

ticket 　チケット　

stamp 　スタンプ　

hobby 　趣味

butter 　バター

soap 　石鹸

cheese 　チーズ

flour 　小麦粉

The verb “have” 動詞　”have”

In this lesson, we will learn 
when “have” is used to indicate 
possession.
However, "have" may be used as an 
auxiliary verb.

　　　このレッスンでは”have”が所有を
示す
　　　場合を学習します。
　　　しかし”have”は助動詞としても使用
　　　されます。

I have 　私は～を持っています。

You have 　あなたは～を持っています。

He has 　彼は～を持っています。



She has 　彼女は～を持っています。

It has 　それは～を持っています。

We have 　私たちは～を持っています。

You have 　あなたたちは～を持っています。

They have 　彼らは～を持っています。

I have a brother 　私には兄がいます

You have a sister 　あなたには妹がいます

He has a mother 　彼には母親がいます

She has a father 　彼女には父親がいます

We have a son 　私たちには息子がいます

You have friends 　あなたには友達がいます

They have cousins 　彼らにはいとこがいます

Note: In the third - person singular 
(all genders: masculine, feminine 
and neuter), we use “has” instead of 
“have”.

　　　注：（男性、女性、中性）
　　　の三人称単数には”have”の代わ
りに
　　　”has”を使用します。

The verb “have” – interrogative form 　”have”動詞　–　疑問文

In a question, we add “do” before the 
subject.

　疑問文には主語の前に”do”をつけま
す。

Note: In the third - person singular 
(masculine, feminine and neuter), we 
add “does” instead of “do”.

　　注：三人称単数（男性、女性、中性）
　　には”do”の代わりに”does”を使用
　　します。

Conjugations of the verb “have” in 
interrogative form

　疑問文中の”have”動詞活用形

Do I have? 　私は～を持っていますか？

Do you have? 　あなたは～を持っていますか？



Does he have? 　彼は～を持っていますか？

Does she have? 　彼女は～を持っていますか？

Does it have? 　それは～を持っていますか？

Do we have? 　私たちは～を持っていますか？

Do you have? 　あなたたちは～を持っていますか？

Do they have? 　彼らは～を持っていますか？

Do I have a brother? 　私には兄がいますか？

Do you have an uncle? 　あなたには叔父がいますか？

Do I have an aunt? 　私には叔母がいますか？

Does he have a son? 　彼には息子がいますか？

Does she have a daughter? 　彼女には娘がいますか？

Do we have a nephew? 　私たちには甥がいますか？

Do you have relatives? 　あなたたちには親戚がいますか？

Do they have grandchildren? 　彼らには孫がいますか？

The verb “have” – negative form 　”have”動詞　–　否定文

In a negative sentence, we add 
the words “do not” before the verb 
“have”.

　否定文では”have”動詞の前に”do 
not “
  をつけます。

Note: In the third - person singular 
(masculine, feminine and neuter), we 
add “does not” instead of “do not”.

　注：三人称単数（男性、女性、中性）に
は
　”do not”の代わりに”does not”をつけ
ます

Conjugations of the verb “have” in 
negative form

  否定文中の”have”動詞活用形

I do not have 　私は～を持っていません

You do not have 　あなたは～を持っていません



He does not have 　彼は～を持っていません

She does not have 　彼女は～を持っていません

It does not have 　それは～を持っていません

We do not have 　私たちは～を持っていません

You do not have 　あなたたちは～を持っていません

They do not have 　彼らは～を持っていません

I do not have a grandfather 　私には祖父がいません

You do not have a grandmother 　あなたには祖母がいません　

He does not have a grandson 　彼には孫息子がいません

She does not have a granddaughter 　彼女には孫娘がいません

We do not have a sister 　私たちには姉妹がいません

You do not have a brother 　あなたたちには兄弟がいません

They do not have a family 　彼らには家族がいません

The phrase “have got” 　”have got”フレーズ

In British English, the following 
forms are also used:

　　イギリス英語では次のフレーズも使
用
　　されます。

I have got 　私は～を持っています

(I have not got) I haven't got 　私は～を持っていません

Have you got? 　あなたは～を持っていますか？

Note: “I have got”, “I haven’t got”, 
and “Have you got?” are the same 
as “I have”, “I do not have”, and “Do 
you have?” There is no difference in 
meaning.

　注：”I have got”、”I haven’t got”
、”Have
　 you got?”は”I have”、”I do not 
have”、
　”Do you have?”と同じ意味です。



I have got a camera.= I have a 
camera

　　私はカメラを持っています。＝
　　私はカメラをもっています。

I haven't got a husband = I do not 
have a husband

　　私には夫がいません＝
　　私には夫がいません

Have you got a pencil? = Do you 
have a pencil?   

　　鉛筆を持っていますか？＝
　　鉛筆を持っていますか？

Have you got any children? = Do you 
have any children?

　　お子さんはいますか？＝
　　お子さんはいますか？

Has Doug got a car? = Does Doug 
have a car? 

　　ダグは車を持っていますか？＝
　　ダグは車を持っていますか？

The words “some” and “any” “some” と　”any”

The word “some” means “a small 
amount”. We use “some” before 
non-count nouns, instead of “a” or 
“an”. 
In interrogative or negative 
sentences, we use “any” instead of 
“some”.

　”some”は”少量”を意味します。
　非加算名詞の前には”a”や”an”の
　代わりに”some”を使用します。
　疑問文や否定文では”some”の代わり
に
　”any”を使用します。

I have some salt 　私はいくらかの塩を持っています。

Interrogative form 　疑問文

Do you have any salt? 　あなたはいくらかの塩を持っています
か？

Negative form 　否定文

You do not have any salt. 　あなたは少しも塩を持っていません。

Note: The words “some” and “any” 
can also be used with count nouns 
in plural form.

　注：”some”と”any”は複数形の加算名
詞
　にも使用できます。

I have some friends in Los Angeles. 　ロスアンゼルスに何人か友達がいま
す。



Do you have any friends in Los 
Angeles?

　ロスアンゼルスに何人か友達がいま
すか？

I do not have any friends in Los 
Angeles.

　ロスアンゼルスには全く友達がいませ
ん。

There are some books on the shelf. 　本棚に何冊か本があります。

There are some flowers in the vase. 　花瓶に何本か花があります。

There are some biscuits in the box. 　箱に数枚のビスケットがあります。

Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　声を出して読んでください。

I do not have a fork

I do not have a knife

I do not have a spoon

I do not have a plate

I do not have a cup

I have some money

I have some time

I have some soup

I have some food

I have some water

You have a boyfriend.

You have a girlfriend

You have a brother-in-law

You have a step mother

You have a mother-in-law



They do not have any postcards.

They do not have any diamonds

They do not have any tickets

They do not have any stamps

They do not have any hobbies

Do you have any butter?

Do you have any soap?

Do you have any rice?

Do you have any cheese?

Do you have any flour?

Lesson 12 レッスン12

Vocabulary 語彙

time 　時間

eight 　八

o'clock 　時

nine 　九

half 　半分

past 　過ぎ去った、昔の

eleven 　十一

ten 　十



quarter 　四分の一

to 　～まで

twelve 　十二

hand 　（時計の）針

little 　少しの、短い

get up 　起きる

morning 　朝

home 　家

can 　できる

help 　助ける

use 　使う

lend 　貸す

offer 　申し出る

cigarette 　たばこ

favor 　好意、親切な行為

pay 　払う

by 　による、～のそばに（で）

check 　小切手

question 　質問

pupil 　生徒

a few 　少数の

exactly 　正確に

about 　～について、～のあたりに、～頃に



around 　周囲に

nearly 　ほとんど、もう少しで

almost 　ほとんど、もう少しで

please 　喜ばせる、お願いします

borrow 　借りる

homework 　宿題

afternoon 　午後

till 　～まで

evening 　夜

The clock 時計

What's the time? 　今何時ですか？

The time is eight o'clock. 　時間は８時です。

You can also say...

It's eight o'clock 　８時です

It's nine o'clock 　９時です

It's half past eleven 　１１時半です

It's ten past six 　６時１０分です

It's (a) quarter past six 　６時１５分です

It's five to seven 　７時５分前です

It's a (quarter to twelve) 　（１２時１５分前）です

The big hand is on six and the little 
hand is on one

　長い針は６で短い針は１を指していま
す



Note: Instead of saying “The time is 
nine o’clock,” you can say “It’s nine 
o’clock.” 
We indicate times that are exactly on 
the hour, by adding “o’clock” after 
the number.

　注：”The time is nine o’clock”という
代わりに
　単に “It’s nine o’clock.”と言えます。
数字
　の後に”o’clock”をつけることで９時ち
ょうど
　（９時０分）であることを示します。

What time is it? 　今何時ですか？

Instead, you can say...

What's the time? 　今何時ですか？

It's eight o'clock. 　８時です。

It's ten o'clock. 　　１０時です。

Here, we dropped the word “o’clock”, 
the reason is that the following do 
not indicate the exact hour, but with 
additional minutes

　　下記の時間はちょうど（０分）ではな
く、
　　分が（例、10分、15分など）ある
　　ので”o’clock “がとられています。

It's ten past six 　６時１０分です

It's a quarter past five 　５時１５分です

He gets up at six o'clock in the 
morning

　彼は朝６時に起床します

He eats breakfast at seven o'clock 　彼は朝７時に朝食を食べます。

He goes to school at eight o'clock 　彼は８時に登校します

He goes home at one o'clock 　彼は１時に帰宅します　

He eats lunch at half past one 　彼は１時半に昼食を食べます

He does homework till quarter past 
four in the afternoon

　彼は午後４時１５分まで宿題をします

He eats dinner at seven o'clock in the 
evening

　彼は夜７時に夕食を食べます

He reads a book till nine o'clock 　彼は９時まで本を読みます



He goes to bed at half past ten at 
night

　彼は１０時半に就寝します

What time does he get up in the 
morning?

　彼は朝何時に起床しますか？

What time does he eat breakfast? 　彼は何時に朝食を食べますか？

What time does he go to school? 　彼は何時に登校しますか？

What time does he go to bed? 　彼は何時に就寝しますか？

The auxiliary verb “can” 助動詞　”can”

The verb “can” means “is able to”. 　”can”動詞は”できる”という意味です。

Conjugations of the verb “can” 　”can”動詞活用形

I can 　私は～できます

You can 　あなたは～できます

He can 　彼は～できます

She can 　彼女は～できます

It can 　それは～できます

We can 　私たちは～できます

You can 　あなたたちは～できます

They can 　彼らは～できます

Note: In third-person singular form, 
we do not add an “s”.

　　注：Canには三人称単数でも”s”を
　　つけません。

I can help you 　あなたを助けられます

You can use my pen 　あなたは私のペンを使えます

He can lend you a book 　彼はあなたに本を貸せます



We make an interrogative sentence, 
by placing the word “can” before the 
subject, and without the auxiliary verb 
“do”.

　疑問文を作る時は”do”助動詞は使わ
ず
　”can”を主語の前に置きます。

Can I offer you a cigarette? 　タバコはいかがですか？

Can you do me a favor? 　お願いしてもいいですか？

Can I pay by check? 　小切手で支払ってもよいですか？

We make a negative sentence, by 
using the word “cannot” instead of 
“can” and without the auxiliary verb 
“do”.

　否定文を作る時は”do”助動詞は使わ
ず
　”can”の代わりに”cannot”を使用しま
す。

I cannot answer your questions 　あなたの質問には答えられません

They cannot read English books 　彼らは英語の本は読めません

The word “cannot” can be shortened 
to “can’t”.
For example: “I can’t drink wine.”

　　“cannot”は”can’t”に短縮できます。
　
　　　例：I can’t drink wine　（私はワイ
ンを
　　　飲めません。）

Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　声に出して読んでください。

There are ten pupils in the room

There are twelve pupils in the room

There are thirteen pupils in the room

There are fifteen pupils in the room

There are a few pupils in the room

He goes to the restaurant at 8 o'clock

He goes to the garden at 8 o'clock

He goes to the zoo at 8 o'clock



He goes to the dentist at 8 o'clock

He goes to the bus stop at 8 o'clock

The time is exactly 4 o'clock

The time is about 4 o'clock

The time is around 4 o'clock

The time is nearly 4 o'clock

The time is almost 4 o'clock

I can help you

I can sing English songs

I can answer your questions

I can see the airplane

I can get up at six o'clock

Can I have a knife and a fork please?

Can I borrow your pen?

Can I have a piece of cake?

Can I go to bed?

Can I read your newspaper?

Lesson 13 レッスン　13

Vocabulary 語彙

chocolate 　チョコレート



color 　色

sky 　空

blue 　青色

red 　赤色

grass 　草

green 　緑色

mouse 　ネズミ

grey 　灰色

earth 　土

Earth 　地球（惑星）

brown 　茶色

moon 　月

yellow 　黄色

black 　黒色

sheet 　シーツ、薄い布

white 　白色

pink 　ピンク色

purple 　紫色

hair 　髪

tablecloth 　テーブルクロス

cherry 　さくらんぼ、さくらの木

dark 　暗い

light 　光



rainbow 　虹

orange 　オレンジ色

indigo 　藍色

violet 　スミレ色

sea 　海

too 　～も

favorite 　お気に入りの

blond 　ブロンドの、金髪の

brunette 　ブルーネットの、こげ茶色

American 　アメリカ人、アメリカの

flag 　旗

pillow 　枕

blanket 　毛布

snow 　雪

grapefruit 　グレープフルーツ

lemon 　レモン

bird 　鳥

Contractions 短縮

In English, two words can sometimes 
be contracted into a single word, by 
dropping a letter (usually a vowel). 
The dropped letter is replaced by an 
apostrophe. 
For example, the word “don’t” is a 
contraction of “do not”.

　英語では2つの単語が短縮され、1文
字
　（通常、母音）落として１語になることが
　あります。落とされた文字はアポストロ
フィー
　により取り換えられます。たとえ
ば”don’t”
　は”do not”の短縮です。

what is? = what's



that is = that's

it is = it's

who is = who's

where is = where's

here is = here's

have not = haven't

has not = hasn't

do not = don't

does not = doesn't

I am = I'm

you are = you're

he is = he's

she is = she's

we are = we're

you are = you're

they are = they're

The apostrophe (‘) indicates that a 
vowel is missing:

　アポストロフィー（’）は母音がないこと
を
　示します。

she is = she's

you are = you're

Examples 　例

What's that? 　それは何ですか？

It's a box. 　それは箱です。



It's a chair. 　それはイスです。

It's a drawer. 　それは引き出しです。

Do you eat ice cream? 　アイスクリームを食べますか？

No ,I don't. 　いいえ、食べません。

Do you like chocolate? 　チョコレートが好きですか？

No ,I don't.

Does he drink beer?

No ,he doesn't.

Colors 色

The sky is blue 　空は青色です

The apple is red 　リンゴは赤色です

The grass is green 　草は緑色です

The mouse is grey 　ネズミは灰色です

The earth is brown 　土は茶色です

The moon is yellow 　月は黄色です

The hat is black 　帽子は黒色です

The sheet is white 　シートは白色です　

The flower is pink 　花はピンク色です

The shirt is violet 　シャツはすみれ色です

Questions and answers 　質問と答え

Is the sky red? 　空は赤色ですか？

No, it isn't. 　いいえ、違います。

Is the grass green? 　草は緑色ですか？



Yes, it is. 　はい、そうです。

Is your hair brown? 　あなたの髪の毛は茶色ですか？

Yes, it is. 　はい、そうです。

Is your shirt pink? 　あなたのシャツはピンク色ですか？

No, it isn't. 　いいえ、違います。

Is your hat dark red or light red? 　　あなたの帽子は暗い赤色ですか、そ
れとも
　　明るい赤色ですか？

It's dark red. 　暗い赤色です。

It's not light red. 　　明るい赤色ではありません。

What are the colors of the rainbow? 　虹は何色ですか？

They are green, red, yellow, orange, 
blue, indigo, and violet.

　虹は緑色、赤色、黄色、オレンジ色、
　青色、藍色、すみれ色です。

What color is the sky? 　空は何色ですか？

It's blue. 　青色です。

And what color is the sea? 　海は何色ですか？

It's blue, too. 　それも青色です。

What color is the table? 　テーブルは何色ですか？

It's brown. 　茶色です。

What's your favorite color? 　あなたのお気に入りの色は何です
か？

It's blue. 　青色です。

Is she blonde? 　彼女はブロンドですか？

No, she isn't. 　いいえ、違います。

She is brunette. 　彼女はブルーネットです。



Sentences 　文　

My scarf is purple 　私のスカーフは紫色です

Your skirt is pink 　あなたのスカートはピンクです

His tablecloth is white 　彼のテーブルクロスは白色です

Her hat is grey 　彼女の帽子は灰色です

Our cherries are red 　私たちのさくらんぼは赤色です

Your trousers are green 　あなたのズボンは緑色です

Their shirts are blue 　彼らのシャツは青色です

Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　声に出して読んでください。

Is your skirt brown?

Is your skirt blue?

Is your skirt purple?

Is your skirt grey?

Is your skirt pink?

Her pillow is pink

Her sheet is white

Her blanket is green

Her dress is blue

Her hat is red

He has brown hair

He has black hair

He has grey hair



He has dark hair

He has blond hair

What color is the sky?

What color is the ball?

What color is the sea?

What color is the snow?

What color is the moon?

It is a blue sea

It is a yellow grapefruit

It is a green lemon

It is a red dress

It is a white beard

Lesson 14 レッスン　⒕

Vocabulary 語彙

number 　番号、数、数字

century 　世紀

street 　街路、通り

avenue 　大通り、並木道

floor 　床

row 　列



bus stop 　バスの停留所

chapter 　章

Sunday 　日曜日

Monday 　月曜日

Tuesday 　火曜日

Wednesday 　水曜日

Thursday 　木曜日

Friday 　金曜日

Saturday 　土曜日

come 　来る

before 　以前、前に

last 　最後の

second 　第２（番め）の、秒

date 　日付

nineteenth 　第１９（番め）の

twenty-second 　２２

twentieth 　第１２（番め）の

eighteenth 　第１８（番め）の

bird 　鳥

cage 　かご

thirty 　30

village 　村

basket 　バスケット



eleventh 　第１１（番め）の

Ordinal numbers 序数

first 　第１（番め）の

second 　第２（番め）の　

third 　第３（番め）の

fourth 　第４（番め）の

fifth 　第５（番め）の

sixth 　第６（番め）の

seventh 　第７（番め）の

eighth 　第８（番め）の

ninth 　第９（番め）の

tenth 　第１０（番め）の

Note: Ordinal numbers appear 
before the noun.

　注：序数は名詞の前に置きます。

the first day 　第１日め

the second week 　第２週

the third number 　３番めの数字

the fourth year 　４年め

the fifth century 　５世紀

the sixth street 　６番通り

the seventh avenue 　７番街

the eighth building 　第８ビル

the ninth floor 　９階

the tenth row 　１０列め



Questions and answers 　質問と答え

Is this the first building? 　これが第１ビルですか？

This is the first building. 　これが第１ビルです。

Is this the second question? 　これが２番めの質問ですか？

This is the second question. 　これが２番めの質問です。

Is this the first bus stop? 　これが１番めのバス停ですか？

No, it isn't the first bus stop. 　いいえ、これは１番めのバス停ではあ
りませ
　ん。

It's the second bus stop. 　これは２番目のバス停ですか？

Is this the third avenue? 　これは第３番街ですか？

No, it isn't the third avenue. 　いいえ、第３番街ではありません。

It's the fifth avenue. 　これは５番街です

Is it the fourth lesson? 　それは第４レッスンですか？

No ,it isn't the fourth lesson. 　いいえ、第4レッスンではありません。

It is the seventh lesson. 　第7レッスンです。

Is this the first chapter? 　これは第１章ですか？

No, it isn't the first chapter. 　いいえ、第１章ではありません。

It is the last chapter. 　それは最後の章です。

The days of the week 　曜日

There are seven days in the week. 　週には７日間あります。

What are the days of the week? 　週の曜日は何ですか？

The days of the week are: 　週の曜日は

Sunday 　日曜日



Monday 　月曜日

Tuesday 　火曜日

Wednesday 　水曜日

Thursday 　木曜日

Friday 　金曜日

Saturday 　土曜日

The first day of the week is Sunday

The second day of the week is 
Monday

The third day of the week is Tuesday

The fourth day of the week is 
Wednesday

The fifth day of the week is Thursday

The sixth day of the week is Friday

The seventh day of the week is 
Saturday

Sunday comes before Monday 　日曜日は月曜日の前です

Friday comes after Thursday 　金曜日は木曜日の後です

What day is today? 　今日は何曜日ですか？

Today is Monday 　今日は月曜日です　

Today is Friday 　今日は金曜日です

Is Sunday the last day of the week? 　日曜日は週の最後の日ですか？

Is Saturday the sixth day of the 
week?

　土曜日は週の６日めの日ですか？

There are 365 days in a year. 　１年は３６５日です



There are four weeks in a month 　　１月は４週間です

There are twelve months in a year 　１年は１２か月間です

There are twenty four hours in a day 　１日は２４時間です

There are sixty minutes in an hour 　１時間は６０分です

There are sixty seconds in a minute 　１分は６０秒です

The months of the year １年の月

The months of the year are: 　１年の月は

January 　１月

February 　２月

March 　３月

April 　４月

May 　５月

June 　６月

July 　７月

August 　８月

September 　９月

October 　１０月

November 　１１月

December 　１２月

We use ordinal numbers for dates. 　日付には序数を使用します。

What's the date today? 　今日の日付は何ですか？

It's the nineteenth of March. 　3月19日です。

It's the twenty second of July 　7月22日です。



It's the twentieth of August. 　8月12日です。

It's the eighteenth of September. 　9月18日です。

Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　声に出して読んでください。

This is the second Avenue

This is the third of November

This is the fourth month of the year

This is the fifth number

This is the sixth day of the week

There are sixty minutes in the hour

There are four birds in the cage

There are thirty houses in the village

There are twenty chapters in the book

There are ten eggs in the basket

Sunday comes after Saturday

Monday comes after Sunday

Tuesday comes after Monday

Wednesday comes after Tuesday

Thursday comes after Wednesday

Is this the first book?

Is this the second newspaper?

Is this the third magazine?

Is this the fourth question?



Is this the fifth answer?

July is the seventh month in the year

August is the eighth month in the year

September is the ninth month in the 
year

October is the tenth month in the year

November is the eleventh month in 
the year

Lesson 15 レッスン　15

Vocabulary 語彙

always 　いつも、常に

generally 　一般的に

never 　決して～ない

often 　しばしば

rarely 　めったに～しない、ほとんど～しない

seldom 　めったに～しない、ほとんど～しない

sometimes 　時々、時折

usually 　通常、普通



snow 　雪

detective 　探偵、刑事

know 　知る

listen 　聞く

news 　ニュース

library 　図書館

believe 　信じる

God 　髪

sun 　太陽

rise 　昇る

east 　東

live 　住む、生きる

understand 　理解する

handwriting 　手書き

need 　必要とする

help 　助ける

me 　私に、を

belong 　属する

work 　働く

same 　同じ、同一の

return 　戻る

address 　住所

explain 　説明する



well 　上手に、良く

stay 　継続する、とどまる

act 　実行する

like 　~を望む、好む

correct 　正しい

mistake 　間違い

spend 　費やす

vacation 　休暇

opposite 　反対の

Present Tense 　現在時制

In English, there are two main types 
of Present Tense: 
1. Present Simple
2. Present Progressive

　英語では主に二種類の現在時制が
　あります。
　1．現在形
　2．現在進行形

Present Simple is used for general 
facts or routine actions.

　　　現在形は一般的真理や日常の習
慣
　　　を表現するために使用します。

Conjugations of the verb “walk” in 
Present Simple

現在形における”walk”動詞活用

I walk 　私は歩きます

You walk 　あなたは歩きます

He walks 　彼は歩きます

She walks 　彼女は歩きます

It walks 　それは歩きます

We walk 　私たちは歩きます

You walk 　あなたたちは歩きます



They walk 　彼らは歩きます

Note: In the third-person singular 
(in all 3 genders: masculine, feminine 
and neuter), we add an “s”.

　注：三人称単数（男性、女性、中性の
３つの
　性）では”s”を追加します。

Present Simple is usually used with 
words that indicate routine:

　　　現在形は通常、習慣を表す単語と
　　　使用します。

always 　常に

generally 　一般に、大体、普通

never 　決して～しない

often 　しばしば

rarely 　めったに～しない

seldom 　めったに～しない

sometimes 　時々、時折

usually 　通常、普通

Examples 　例

I always eat breakfast at 7 o'clock 　私は朝食を7時に食べます

I generally drink tea with milk 　私はミルクと一緒に紅茶を飲みます

It never snows in Hawaii 　　　ハワイには雪は決して降りません

She often reads detective stories 　彼女は時折探偵小説を読みます

He rarely knows the answer 　彼はめったに答えを知りません

He seldom goes to the zoo 　彼はめったに動物園に行きません

We sometimes listen to the news 　私たちは時々ニュースを聞きます

They usually go to the library 　彼らは普通図書館へ行きます

Time phrases 時間に関するフレーズ



Time phrases consisting of two or 
more words appear at the end of the 
sentence.

　　　２語以上の時間に関するフレーズ
は
　　　文末に置かれます。

every day 　毎日

every week 　毎週

every evening 　毎夜

in the morning 　朝

in the evening 　夜

every year 　毎年

Examples 　例

We drink tea every evening 　私たちは毎晩お茶を飲みます

I learn English every day 　私たちは毎日英語を学習します

We go to Paris every year 　私たちは毎年パリへ行きます

He always does his homework in the 
afternoon

　　　彼はいつも午後に宿題をします

Additional sentences 　追加のセンテンス

We believe in God 　私たちは神を信じます

The sun rises in the east 　太陽は東から昇ります

Does he always drink coffee in the 
morning?

　彼は朝コーヒーを飲みますか？

I don't know where he lives 　彼がどこに住んでいるか知りません

I don't understand your handwriting 　あなたの手書きが理解できません

He doesn't need my help 　彼は私の助けを必要としません

She doesn't believe me 　彼女は私を信じません

We don't know whose pen this is 　私たちはこれが誰のペンか知りません



These books don't belong to my sister 　これらの本は私の姉のものではありま
せん

Do you always go to work at the 
same time?

　あなたはいつも同じ時間に仕事へ行き
ます
　か？

Does he generally return home at five 
o'clock?

　彼は普通５時に帰宅しますか？

Does she know my address? 　彼女は私の住所を知っていますか？

Does the teacher explain the chapter 
well?

　先生はこの章をよく説明しましたか？

Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　音を出して読んでください

She eats breakfast every day

She eats lunch every day

She eats dinner every day

She eats supper every day

She eats bread every day

He often acts like a little boy

He often corrects our mistakes

He often returns home at six o'clock.

He often spends his vacation in Paris

He often goes to bed early

He doesn't understand English

He doesn't understand his homework

He doesn't understand our children

He doesn't understand the question



He doesn't understand me

We do not sit opposite the tree

We do not sit in front of the tree

We do not sit behind the tree

We do not sit under the tree

We do not sit on the tree

He always does his homework in the 
afternoon

He always needs my help

He always uses pencils when he 
writes

He always does his work at 4 o'clock

He always listens to his parents

Lesson 16 レッスン　16

Vocabulary 語彙

now 　今

at present 　現在

at this moment 　この瞬間に

laugh 　笑う

him 　彼に、を

erase 　消す



repeat 　反復する

sentence 　文

wait 　待つ

rain 　雨

cut 　切る

put 　置く

run 　走る

stop 　止まる、止める

swim 　泳ぐ

admit 　認める

close 　閉じる

move 　動く

smile 　微笑む

cinema 　映画、シネマ

hold 　持つ、握る、つかむ

copy 　コピーする

go out 　外出する

exercise 　練習する

study 　勉強する、研究する

but 　しかし

piano 　ピアノ

violin 　バイオリン

guitar 　ギター



flute 　フルート

organ 　オルガン

face 　顔

head 　頭

leg 　脚

poem 　詩

you 　あなたに、を

her 　彼女に、を

us 　私たちに、を

them 　彼らに、を

Present Tense (continued) 現在形（続く）

Present Progressive is used to 
describe an action that is happening 
right now. In Present Progressive, 
we use the auxiliary verb “be” (am, is, 
are), followed by the main verb with 
the suffix “ing” added.

　現在進行形は現在進行中の活動を
　表現するために使用します。現在進行
形
　では”be”助動詞（am、is、are）とその
後
　に接尾辞”ing”がついた動詞を使用
　します。

Conjugations of the verb “walk” in 
Present Progressive

現在進行形における”walk”動詞活用

I am walking 　私は歩いています

You are walking 　あなたは歩いています

He is walking 　彼は歩いています

She is walking 　彼女は歩いています

It is walking 　それは歩いています

We are walking 　私たちは歩いています

You are walking 　あなたたちは歩いています



They are walking 　彼らは歩いています

We sometimes add time phrases at 
the end of the sentence to indicate 
that the action is happening as we 
speak.

　文末に時間のフレーズを追加
　することで、活動が現在進行中で
　あることを示すことがあります。

now 　今

at present 　現在

today 　今日

at this moment 　この瞬間

at this minute 　この瞬間

Examples 　例

I am listening to music at this moment 　私はこの瞬間音楽を聴いています

You are laughing at him 　あなたは彼のことを笑っています

He is erasing the whiteboard now 　彼はホワイトボードを消しています

We are repeating the sentences 　私たちは文を反復しています

They are waiting for you 　彼らはあなたを待っています

It is raining now 　雨が降っています

If a verb ends with the pattern 
consonant - stressed vowel - 
consonant, usually we double the 
consonant before adding the suffix “ 
-ing”.

　　　　動詞が子音-強調された母音-子
音
　　　　のパターンで終わる場合、
　　　　”-ing”接尾辞の前に子音が　
　　　　二つつきます。

sit – sitting 　座る－座っている

stop – stopping 　止まる－止まっている

swim – swimming 　泳ぐ－泳いでいる

cut – cutting 　切る－切っている



put – putting 　置く－置いている

run – running 　走る－走っている

admit – admitting 　認める－認めている

begin – beginning 　始める－始めている

If a verb ends with the letter “e”, we 
drop the “e” before adding the suffix 
“ing”.

　　　動詞が”e”で終わる場合、”-ing”
　　接尾辞の前にある”e”をとります。

smile – smiling 　　　微笑む－微笑んでいる

take – taking 　取る－取っている

write – writing 　書く－書いている

close – closing 　閉じる－閉じている

come – coming 　来る－来つつある

move – moving 　動く－動いている

We make a negative sentence, by 
adding the word “not” between the 
auxiliary "to be" and the main verb.

　否定文は”be”助動詞と動詞の間に
　”not”をつけて作ります。

Conjugations of the verb “walk” in 
negative form

否定文における”walk”動詞活用

I am not walking 　私は歩いていません

You are not walking 　あなたは歩いていません

He is not walking 　彼は歩いていません

She is not walking 　彼女は歩いていません

It is not walking 　それは歩いていません

We are not walking 　私たちは歩いていません

You are not walking 　あなたたちは歩いていません

They are not walking 　彼らは歩いていません



Examples 　例

I'm not singing today 　私は今日は歌いません

You aren't going to the cinema 　あなたは今日映画に行きません

He isn't holding my hand 　彼は私の手を握っていません

She isn't copying the exercise 　彼女はエクササイズをコピーしていま
せん

It isn't raining now 　今雨は降っていません

We aren't closing the window 　私たちは窓を閉めていません

They aren't opening the door 　彼らはドアを開けていません

We make an interrogative sentence, 
by putting the auxiliary "to be" before 
the subject.

　疑問文は主語の前に”to be”助動詞を
　置くことで作ります。

Conjugations of the verb “walk” in 
interrogative form

疑問文における”walk”動詞活用

Am I walking? 　私は歩いていますか？

Are you walking? 　あなたは歩いていますか？

Is he walking? 　彼は歩いていますか？

Is she walking? 　彼女は歩いていますか？

Is it walking? 　それは歩いていますか？

Are we walking? 　私たちは歩いていますか？

Are you walking? 　あなたたちは歩いていますか？

Are they walking? 　彼らは歩いていますか？

Examples 　例

Am I talking with Ms Simpson? 　私はシンプソンさんと話しています
か？

Are you reading a book? 　あなたは本を読んでいますか？



Is he going out tonight? 　彼は今夜出かけますか？

Is she answering? 　彼女は答えていますか？

Is it snowing? 　雪は降っていますか？

Are we returning home? 　私たちは家に帰りますか？

Are they studying Russian? 　彼らはロシア語を勉強していますか？

Let’s take a look at the differences 
between Present Simple and 
Present Progressive.

　　　現在形と現在進行形の違いを見て
　　　みましょう。

I eat bread and butter every morning, 
but now I'm eating an egg

　私は毎朝パンとバターを食べますが、
　今は卵を食べています

I go to school every day at 8 o'clock, 
but today I'm going to the park

　　　　私は毎日8時に登校しますが、今
日
　　　　は公園に行きます

He plays football every day, but now he is 
playing tennis 

　　　彼は毎日サッカーをしますが、今は
　　　テニスをしています

Dan usually reads a book, but now he is 
reading a newspaper

　ダンは通常、本を読みますが、今は
　新聞を読んでいます

Object pronouns 目的格の代名詞

me 　私に、を

you 　あなたに、を

him 　彼に、を

her 　彼女に、を

it 　それに、を

us 　私たちに、を

you 　あたたたちに、を

them 　彼らに、を



Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　声に出して読んでください。

He is playing the piano

He is playing the violin

He is playing the guitar

He is playing the flute

He is playing the organ

She is washing her face

She is washing her hands

She is washing her head

She is washing her fingers

She is washing her legs

Is she writing a letter?

Is she writing a story?

Is she writing a book?

Is she writing a song?

Is she writing a poem?

He is not waiting for you

He is not waiting for me

He is not waiting for her

He is not waiting for us

He is not waiting for them

Are you going to school?



Are you sleeping?

Are you singing?

Are you writing a letter?

Are you listening?

Lesson 17 レッスン　17

Vocabulary 語彙

will 　～だろう、するつもりである

phone 　電話

tomorrow 　明日

party    パーティ-

type 　型、タイプ、種類

soon 　まもなく

be 　～である

back 　背面、背、後ろ

next 　次

remain 　残る

elections 　選挙

take place 　起こる、催される

forget 　忘れる

catch 　捕まえる



wash 　洗う

dish 　皿

give 　与える

dictionary 　辞書

arrive 　到着する

meet 　会う

railway 　鉄道

station 　駅

concert 　コンサート

sign 　署名する

rent 　賃借する、賃貸する、家賃

end 　終了、終わる

carry 　運ぶ

holiday 　休日

haircut 　散髪

park 　公園

beach 　浜辺

shave 　剃る

bath 　入浴する、風呂

shower 　シャワー

shampoo 　シャンプー

promise 　約束する

fare 　運賃



fee 　料金

tax 　ファックス

debt 　借金

Future tense 未来時制

In Future Tense, we add "will", which 
is the future form of the auxiliary verb 
"to be

　未来時制では”to be”助動詞の未来形
　である”will”をつけます。

Conjugations of the verb “come” in 
Future Tense

未来時制における”come”動詞活用

I will come 　私は来ます

You will come 　あなたは来ます

He will come 　彼は来ます

She will come 　彼女は来ます

It will come 　それは来ます

We will come 　私たちはきます

You will come 　あなたたちは来ます

They will come 　彼らは来ます

Examples 　例

I will answer the phone 　私は電話に応えます

You will come to the party tomorrow 　あなたは明日パーティに来ます

He will type the letter for you 　彼はあなたへの手紙をタイプします

She will be back soon 　彼女はもうすぐ戻ります

We will learn English next week 　私たちは来週英語を学習します

They will remain at home today 　彼らは今日は家にいます



The elections will take place next 
month

　選挙は来月に開かれます

Future Tense – negative form 　　未来形-　
　　　　否定文

We make a negative sentence, 
by adding the word “not” after the 
auxiliary verb “will”.

　　　　否定文は”will”助動詞の後
に”not”
　　　をつけて作ります。

Conjugations of the verb “come” in 
negative form

否定文における”come”動詞活用

I will not come 　私は来ません

You will not come 　あなたは来ません

He will not come 　彼は来ません

She will not come 　彼女は来ません

It will not come 　それは来ません

We will not come 　私たちは来ません

You will not come 　あなたたちは来ません

They will not come 　彼らは来ません

Examples 　例

I will not forget your help 　あなたの援助は忘れません

You will not catch the ball 　あなたはボールを受け止めません

He will not wash the dishes today 　彼は今日は皿を洗いません

She will not give you the dictionary 　彼女はあなたに辞書を与えません

We will not arrive at 10 o'clock 　私たちは10時に到着しません

They will not meet us at the railway 
station

　彼らは鉄道駅で私たちと会いません



The concert will not begin at half past 
eight

　コンサートは８時半には始まりません

Interrogative form 疑問文

We make an interrogative sentence, 
by putting the auxiliary verb “will” 
before the subject.

　疑問文は主語の前に”will”助動詞を
　つけて作ります。

Conjugations of the verb “come” in 
interrogative form

疑問文における”come”動詞活用

Will I come? 　私は来ますか？

Will you come? 　あなたは来ますか？

Will he come? 　彼は来ますか？

Will she come? 　彼女は来ますか？

Will it come? 　それは来ますか？

Will we come? 　私たちは来ますか？

Will you come? 　あなたたちは来ますか？

Will they come? 　彼らは来ますか？

Examples 　例

Will I catch the bus? 　私はバスをつかまえられますか？

Will you sign your name here? 　ここにあなたの名前を署名してくれま
すか？

Will he pay your rent at the end of this 
week?

　彼は今週末あなたに家賃を払います
か？

Will you buy her a dress? 　あなたは彼女にドレスを買いますか？

Will we help him to carry his basket? 　　私たちは彼がバスケットを運ぶのを
　　助けますか？

Will they have a holiday in France 
next year?

　来年フランスには休日がありますか？



Note: The word “I’ll” is the contracted 
form of “I will”, and the phrase “I 
won’t” is the contracted form of “I 
will not”. 
Same with “you’ll, he’ll, we’ll” and 
“you won’t, they won’t”, etc.

　注：”I’ll”は”I will”の短縮形です。
　”I won’t”は”I will not”の短縮形です。 
  
　you’ll, he’ll, we’ll, you won’t, they 
won’t
  なども同様です。

I'll have a haircut tomorrow 　明日散髪に行きます

I won't forget your address 　あなたの住所は忘れません

Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　声を出して読んでください。

I will go to the cinema next week

I will go to the beach next week

I will go to the zoo next week

I will go to the park next week

I will go to the concert next week

I'll have a shave tomorrow

I'll have a haircut tomorrow

I'll have a bath tomorrow

I'll have a shower tomorrow

I'll have a shampoo tomorrow

I'll buy a ticket

I'll buy a ladder

I'll buy a hammer

I'll buy a flag

I'll buy a basket

I won't forget your help



I won't forget your question

I won't forget your promise

I won't forget your name

I won't forget your party

Will you pay your rent?

Will you pay your fare?

Will you pay your fee?

Will you pay your tax?

Will you pay your debt?
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Vocabulary 語彙　

yesterday 　昨日

ago 　前

send 　送る　

parcel 　小包　

weekend 　週末

visit 　訪問、訪問する

Had (past of "have") 　持っていた（”have”の過去形）

test 　テスト、試験　

climb 　登る



stair 　階段

arrive 　到着する

pay 　支払う

pass 　　　通り過ぎる

examination 　試験

lock 　鍵をかける

finish 　終わる

get off 　降りる

watch 　じっと見る、観察する

television 　テレビ

lose 　失う

purse 　バッグ

shake 　振る

bottle 　びん

break 　割る、壊す

arm 　腕

repeat 　反復する

key 　鍵

ride 　乗る

enjoy 　楽しむ

concert 　コンサート

leave 　去る

alone 　孤独、1人で



invite 　招待する

party 　　　パーティー

where 　どこ

was 　だった（be動詞の過去形）

pleasant 　楽しい、愉快な

fine 　すばらしい、りっぱな

enjoyable 　楽しめる

Past Simple 単純過去

We use the Past Simple to describe 
things that happened sometime in 
the past. The Past Simple is usually 
accompanied by certain time words:

 　過去に起こったことを表現するには
　単純過去を使用します。過去時制には
　時を表す単語を使用します。

yesterday 　昨日

last week 　先週

last month 　先月

last year 　昨年

last night 　昨晩

ago 　前

In Past Simple, we add the suffix 
“-ed” at the end of the base form of 
the verb.

　　　単純過去時制には原形動詞
　　　の語尾に”-ed”をつけます

arrive – arrived 　到着する－到着した

visit – visited 　訪問する－訪問した

pass – passed 　通り過ぎる－通り過ぎた

climb – climbed 　登る－登った



If a verb ends with the letter “e”, we 
just add the letter “d”.

　　　動詞の語尾が”e”で終わる時は”d”
　　だけを追加します。

bake – baked 　焼く－焼いた

invite – invited 　招待する－招待した

move – moved 　動く－動いた

close – closed 　閉じる－閉じた

If a verb ends with the letter “y”, and 
the “y” is preceded by a consonant, 
we change the letter “y” to the letter 
“i” and then add the suffix “ed”.

　動詞が”y”で終わる時で”y”の前に子音
が
　ある場合、”y”を”i”に変更し、”ed”を
　追加します。

copy – copied 　コピーする－コピーした

study – studied 　勉強する－勉強した

Note: If the letter “y” is preceded by a 
vowel, we simply add the suffix “ed”.

　注：”y”の前に母音がある場合、”ed”
　を追加します。

play – played 　遊ぶ－遊んだ

stay – stayed 　泊まる－泊まった

In most cases, if a verb ends with 
the pattern consonant-vowel-
consonant, we double the final letter 
and then add the suffix “ed”.

　　　動詞が子音－母音－子音で終わ
る時、
　　　ほとんどの場合、最後の子音を繰
り
　　　返してから”ed”を追加します。

stop – stopped 　止める－止めた

admit – admitted 　認める－認めた

Irregular verbs 不規則動詞　

In English, there are many verbs that 
are exceptions to the rules we’ve 
learned. We do not add the suffix “ed” 
to these words.

　　　英語の多くの動詞には今まで学習
　　　したルールは当てはまりません。
　　　次の単語には接尾辞”ed”を
　　　追加しません。



Examples of irregular verbs, in 
Present Tense and Past Simple

　現在時制と過去時制での不規則動詞

be > was 　である->だった

break > broke 　壊す->壊した

bring > brought 　持ってくる->持ってきた

buy > bought 　買う->買った

catch > caught 　捕まえる->捕まえた

come > came 　来る->来た

cost > cost 　掛かる->掛かった

cut > cut 　切る->切った

can > could 　できる->できた

do > did 　する->した

drink > drank 　飲む->飲んだ

drive > drove 　運転する->運転した

feel > felt 　感じる->感じた

forget > forgot 　忘れる->忘れた

get > got 　得る->得た

give -> gave 　与える->与えた

go > went 　行く->行った

have >  had 　持つ->持った

hear > heard 　聞く->聞いた

hold > held 　押さえる->押さえた

keep > kept 　取っておく->取っておいた

know > knew 　知る->知った



leave > left 　去る->去った

lend > lent 　貸す->貸した

lose > lost 　失う->失った

make > made 　作る->作った

may > might 　してもよい->してもよかった

meet > met 　会う->会った

pay > paid 　払う->払った

put > put 　置く->置いた

read > read 　読む->読んだ

ride > rode 　乗る->乗った

rise > rose 　昇る->昇った

run > ran 　走る->走った

see > saw 　見る->見た

send > sent 　送る->送った

shake > shook 　振る->振った

shut > shut 　閉じる->閉じた

sit > sat 　座る->座った

speak > spoke 　話す->話した

spend > spent 　費やす->費やした

stand > stood 　立つ->立った

swim > swam 　泳ぐ->泳いだ

take > took 　取る->取った

teach > taught 　教える->教えた



tell > told 　語る->語った

wear > wore 　着る->着た

Examples: 　例

He sent the parcel yesterday 　彼は昨日小包を送った

She read a story last weekend 　先週、彼女は物語を読んだ

We visited our uncle last month 　先月、私たちの叔父を訪問した

They had a test four days ago 　彼らは4日前にテストを受けた

He climbed those stairs yesterday 　昨日、彼は階段を登った

The airplane arrived in LA at 6 o'clock 
last night

　昨晩、飛行機はLAに6時に到着した

He paid me 200 dollars last year 　　　彼は昨年私に200ドル払った

Past Simple – negative form 単純過去－否定文

We make a negative sentence, by 
adding the words “did not” before the 
verb, and then changing the verb to 
its base form.

　　　否定文は動詞の前に”did not”を
　　　追加し、動詞を原形に変更して
　　　作ります。

He passed his final examination 　彼は期末試験に合格した

He did not pass his final examination 　彼は期末試験に合格しなかった

Note: In the negative form, we drop 
the suffix “ed”.

　注：否定文では”ed”をとります。

Examples: 　例：

He locked the door 　彼はドアに鍵をかけた

He did not lock the door 　彼はドアに鍵をかけなかった

We did not finish our work 　私たちは仕事を終了しなかった

We did not get off the bus 　私たちはバスを降りなかった



He did not watch television yesterday 
afternoon

　彼は昨日の午後テレビを観なかった

She did not lose her purse 　彼女はバッグを失わなかった

They did not shake the bottle 　彼らはビンを振らなかった

He did not break his arm 　彼は腕を折らなかった

She did not repeat the questions 　彼女は質問を繰り返さなかった

Past Simple – interrogative form 単純過去－疑問文

We make an interrogative sentence, 
by putting the word “did” at the 
beginning of the sentence, and then 
changing the verb to its base form.

　疑問文は文頭に”Did”をつけ、動詞を
原形に
　変更することで作ります。

He lost his key. 　彼は鍵を失くした。

Did he lose his key? 　彼は鍵を失くしたの？

Examples 　例

He rode his bicycle. 　彼は自転車に乗った。

Did he ride his bicycle? 　彼は自転車に乗った？

She enjoyed the concert. 　彼女はコンサートを楽しんだ。

Did she enjoy the concert? 　彼女はコンサートを楽しんだ？

He left me alone. 　彼は私を放っておいた。

Did he leave me alone? 　彼は私を放っておいた？

I finished my homework. 　私は宿題を終えた。

Did I finish my homework? 　私は宿題を終えた？

Did you sleep well last night? 　昨晩よく眠った？

Did he invite you to the party? 　　　彼はあなたをパーティーに誘った？

Did she clean the window? 　彼女は窓を拭いた？



You were here yesterday. 　あなたは昨日ここにいました。

Where were you at 7 o'clock this 
morning?

　あなたは今朝7時どこにいましたか？

I was at home. 　私は家にいました。

Were you at home yesterday? 　昨日家にいた？

Yes I was. 　はい、いました

The verb “be” in Past Simple 単純過去の”to be”動詞

I was 　私は～だった

You were 　あなたは～だった

He was 　彼は～だった

She was 　彼女は～だった

It was 　それは～だった

We were 　私たちは～だった

You were 　あなたたちは～だった

They were 　彼らは～だった

Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　声を出して読んでください

I did not lose my key

I did not lose my purse

I did not lose my wallet

I did not lose my gloves

I did not lose my shoes

I studied English last night

I studied English last week



I studied English yesterday

I studied English on Sunday

I studied English two days ago

Did you finish your work?

Did you finish your breakfast?

Did you finish your coffee?

Did you finish your lessons?

Did you finish your newspaper?

Did you have a good holiday?

Did you have a pleasant holiday?

Did you have a fine holiday?

Did you have an interesting holiday?

Did you have an enjoyable holiday?

I did not go to bed

I did not go for a walk

I did not go to the park

I did not go home

I did not go to school
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Vocabulary 語彙



season 　季節

name 　名前

spring 　春

summer 　夏

autumn 　秋

winter 　冬

like 　好む、好き

rainy 　雨の、雨模様の

sunny 　日当たりのよい、晴れの

bitterly 　ひどく、苦々しく

snowing 　雪が降っている

windy 　風の強い

humid 　湿気のある

a lot of 　多量の

a bit 　少しの

cloudy 　曇った

pouring 　土砂降り

changeable 　変わりやすい

throughout 　～のいたるところで

turn 　曲がる、回転する

very 　とても

rise 　昇る

set 　置く、整える、定める



late 　遅い

clear 　澄んだ、透明な

damp 　湿り気のある

stormy 　嵐の、荒れた

freeze 　凍る

foggy 　霧がかかった

awful 　大変な、恐ろしい

glorious 　名誉となる、壮大な

snowy 　雪の、雪の降る

mild 　穏やかな、温和な

bright 　明るい

only 　～だけ、のみ

thunder storm 　雷雨

lightning 　稲妻

hard 　固い、困難な

frost 　霜

shower 　にわか雨

The weather 天気

How many seasons are there in a 
year?

　一年にはいくつの季節がありますか？

There are four seasons in a year. 　一年には4つの季節があります。

What are the names of the seasons? 　季節の名前は何ですか？

They are: spring, summer, autumn, 
and winter.

　春、夏、秋、冬です。



What's the weather like in the spring? 　春の天気はどんな感じですか？

It's warm in the spring. 　春は暖かいです。

What's the weather like in the 
summer?

　夏の天気はどういう感じですか？

It's hot in the summer. 　夏は暑いです。

What's the weather like in the 
autumn?

　秋の天気はどういう感じですか？

It's cool in the autumn. 　秋は涼しいです。

What's the weather like in the winter? 　冬の天気はどういう感じですか？

It's cold in the winter. 　冬は寒いです。

What's the weather like today? 　今日の天気はどういう感じですか？

It's rainy today. 　今日は雨模様です。

It's sunny today. 　今日は晴れです。

It's bitterly cold today. 　今日はひどく寒いです。

Note: “What’s he like?” means “What 
does he look like?” or “What type of 
a person is he?”
“What’s the weather like?” means 
“What’s the weather?” or “How is 
the weather?”

　　　注：”What’s he like?”は彼はどん
な
　　　外見をしていますか？”あるいは
　　　”彼はどんな人ですか？”という
　　　意味です。
　　”What’s the weather like?”は
　　どんな天気ですか？”という
　　　意味です。

Examples 　例

It isn't snowing today 　今日は雪は降っていません

It isn't windy today 　今日は風は強くありません

It isn't humid today 　今日は湿気は高くありません

Which season do you like best? 　どの季節が一番好きですか？



I like winter best. 　冬が一番好きです

What's your favorite season? 　好きな季節は何ですか？　

Spring is my favorite season. 　私の好きな季節は春です

There are a lot of clouds today 　今日はたくさんの雲があります

There was wind yesterday 　昨日は風がありました

There are no clouds in the sky 　空は雲一つありません

It's a bit cloudy but it's not raining 　少し曇っていますが、雨は降っていま
せん

It's pouring rain 　土砂降りです

In Spain the weather is changeable 
throughout the year

　スペインは１年中、天気が変わりやす
い
　です

In the winter the weather turns cool. It 
rains very often

　冬は寒くなります。雨が頻繁に降りま
す

In the summer the sun rises early in 
the morning

　夏は朝早く陽が昇ります

In the summer the sun sets late in the 
evening

　夏は夜遅く陽が沈みます

In the winter the days are short 　冬の日中は短い

In the winter the nights are long 　冬の夜は長い

Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　声を出して読んでください

It's cloudy today

It's cool today

It's clear today

It's damp today



It's raining today

It is stormy today

It is freezing today

It is foggy today

It is awful today

It is snowing today

It's a lovely day today

It's a glorious day today

It's a snowy day today

It's a sunny day today

It's a wet day today

Our weather is mild in spring

Our weather is pleasant in spring

Our weather is bright in spring

Our weather is fine in spring

Our weather is warm in spring
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Vocabulary 語彙

strong 　強い

old 　古い



clever 　賢い

pretty 　可愛い

rich 　金持ちの、豊かな

dirty 　汚い

new 　新しい

good 　良い

bad 　悪い

small 　小さい

weak 　弱い

sweet 　甘い

sour 　すっぱい

clean 　清潔な

daily 　日々の

monthly 　月々の

took 　取った

short 　短い

dangerous 　危険な

wet 　濡れた

road 　道路

poor 　貧しい

fat 　太い、肥満した

thin 　細い

stupid 　馬鹿な



important 　重要な

modern 　近代的な

ancient 　昔の、古くからの

fast 　速い

train 　列車

slow 　遅い

excellent 　優秀な

ugly 　醜い

attractive 　魅力的な

friendly 　友好的な

beautiful 　美しい

deep 　深い

calm 　穏やかな

shallow 　浅い、浅はかな

nice 　快い、親切な

The adjective 形容詞

An adjective is a word that describes 
a noun.
Note: An adjective comes before the 
noun it describes.

　形容詞は名詞を修飾する品詞です。
　注：形容詞は修飾する名詞の前に置き
ます。

The clever boy passed his final 
examination

　賢い少年は期末試験に合格した

The clever girl finished her homework 　賢い少女は宿題を終了した

The clever girls read a book yesterday 　賢い少女たちは昨日本を読んだ

The clever boys enjoyed the concert 　賢い少年たちはコンサートを楽しんだ



More examples 　その他の例

She is a pretty woman 　彼女は可愛い女性です

He is a rich man 　彼は裕福な男です

We are strong men    私たちは強い男たちです　

It is a long street 　それは長い通りです

It is a dirty shirt 　それは汚いシャツです

It is a new dress 　それは新しいドレスです

Questions and answers 　質問と答え

Is he a good boy? 　彼は良い少年ですか？

No, he isn't. 　いいえ、良くありません。

He is a bad boy 　彼は悪い少年です。

Is this a big house? 　これは大きな家ですか？

No, it isn't. 　いいえ、大きくありません。

It's a small house. 　それは小さな家です。　

Are they strong men? 　彼らは強い男たちですか？

No, they aren't. 　いいえ、彼らは強くありません。

They are weak men. 　彼らは弱い男たちです。

Is it a sweet orange? 　それは甘いオレンジですか？

No, it isn't. 　いいえ、甘くありません。

It is a sour orange. 　それはすっぱいオレンジです。

Examples: 　例：

It's a daily newspaper 　それは日刊新聞です。

It's a monthly magazine 　それは月間雑誌です。



It's a clean shirt 　それは清潔なシャツです。

It's dangerous to walk on the wet road 　濡れた道路の上を歩くのは危険です

He took a short vacation last week 　彼は先週短い休暇を取りました

Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　声を出して読んでください。

He is a rich man

He is a poor man

He is a fat man

He is a thin man

He is a stupid man

This is a large town

This is an important town

This is a modern town

This is an historical town

This is an ancient town

Is it a fast train?

Is it a slow train?

Is it a long train?

Is it a new train?

Is it a clean train?

She is an ugly secretary

She is an excellent secretary

She is an attractive secretary



She is a friendly secretary

She is a beautiful secretary

It is a calm lake

It is a deep lake

It is a clean lake

It is a shallow lake

It is a nice lake
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Vocabulary 語彙

than 　～に比べて、～よりも

cheap 　安い

quiet 　静かな

young 　若い

airplane 　飛行機

helicopter 　ヘリコプター

furniture 　家具

quarter 　四分の一、地区

class 　クラス

hot 　暑い

sad 　悲しい



wolf 　オオカミ

fox 　キツネ

south 　南

north 　北

goods 　商品

market 　市場、マーケット

shop 　店

period 　ピリオド、期間

decade 　10年間

problem 　問題　

mathematics 　算数

safe 　安全

other 　その他

belt 　ベルト

jewelry 　宝石

angry 　怒る、腹を立てる

early 　早い

easy 　簡単な

funny 　おかしい

stone 　石

slim 　ほっそりした　

polite 　ていねいな

brave 　勇敢な



wise 　賢い、賢明な

cool 　涼しい

warm 　暖かい

person 　人

neighborhood 　近所

lucky 　幸運な

The adjective (continued) 形容詞（続く）

Comparative and superlative forms
In English, there are two forms of 
comparison:
1. Comparative-This form is used 
to compare between two nouns. 
We usually achieve comparative 
form by adding the suffix “-er” to the 
adjective, and separating the nouns 
with the word “than”.

　比較級と最上級
　英語では2通りの比較があります。
　比較級　－これは2つの名詞を比較
　するときに使用します。比較級は
　通常形容詞に”－er”接尾辞を追加し、
　”than”を付けて名詞
　を離すことで作ります。

1. Superlative-This form is used 
to compare between three or 
more nouns. We usually achieve 
superlative form by adding the suffix 
“-est” to the adjective, and adding 
the word “the” before the adjective.

　最上級－これは3つ以上の名詞を比
較する
　時使用します。最上級は通常形容詞
に
　”-est”接尾辞を追加し、”the”を形容詞
の前
　に追加することで作ります。

cheap › cheaper › the cheapest 　安い－より安い－最も安い

cold › colder › the coldest 　冷たい－より冷たい－最も冷たい

high › higher › the highest 　高い－より高い－最も高い

old › older › the oldest 　古い－より古い－最も古い

quiet › quieter › the quietest 　静かな－より静かな－最も静かな

short › shorter › the shortest 　短い－より短い－最も短い

strong › stronger › the strongest 　強い－より強い－最も強い



young › younger › the youngest 　若い－より若い－最も若い

Examples: 　例：

An airplane is faster than a helicopter 　飛行機はヘリコプターより速い

My uncle is older than my aunt 　私の叔父は叔母より年を取っている

He is younger than his sister 　彼は彼の姉より若い

Doug is stronger than Dan 　ダグはダンより強い

Where is furniture cheaper ,in Los 
Angeles or in New York?

　ロスアンゼルスとニューヨークとどちら
の
　家具がより安いですか？

Mount Everest is the highest 
mountain in the world

　エベレスト山は世界で最も高い山です

February is the shortest month of the 
year

　2月は1年で最も短い月です

Which is the longest street in this 
quarter?

　この地区でどの通りが一番長いです
か？

December is a cold month 　12月は寒い月です

February is colder than December 　2月は12月より寒いです

January is the coldest month of the 
year

　1月は1年で最も寒い月です。

Dan is a tall boy 　ダンは背が高い少年です

Doug is taller than Dan 　ダグはダンより背が高いです

Johnny is the tallest boy in the class 　　　ジョニーはクラスで一番背が高い
　　　少年です



If an adjective is one syllable long 
and end with the pattern consonant 
- vowel - consonant, we double 
the last letter and then add the suffix 
“er” for the comparative form or the 
suffix “est” for the superlative form.

　　　比較級を作る時、形容詞が1音節
　　　より長く、子音－母音－子音の
　　　パターンで終わる場合、語尾の字
を
　　　繰り返し、”er”接尾辞を追加しま
す。
　　　最上級の場合、”est”接尾辞　　
　　　を追加します。

big › bigger › the biggest 　大きい－より大きい－最も大きい

fat › fatter › the fattest 　太い－より太い－最も太い

hot › hotter › the hottest 　熱い－より熱い－最も熱い

sad › sadder › the saddest 　悲しい－より悲しい－最も悲しい

thin › thinner › the thinnest 　細い－より細い－最も細い

Examples 　例

The wolf is bigger than the fox 　オオカミはキツネより大きい

He is fatter than his wife 　彼は彼の妻よりも太っている

The south of the United States is 
hotter than the north

　米国の南部は北部より熱い

He is sadder than his brother 　彼は彼の弟より悲しい

Emily is thinner than her brother 　エミリーは彼女の兄より細い

The goods in the market are cheaper 
than the goods in the shops

　マーケットの商品は店より安い

Doug is a big boy 　ダグは大きな少年です

Dan is bigger than Doug 　ダンはダグより大きいです

Johnny is the biggest boy in the 
family

　ジョニーは家族で最も大きい少年です

It is one of the saddest periods in the 
decade

　この10年間で最も悲しい時期です



It is the most difficult problem in 
Mathematics

　数学で最も難しい問題です

She is a fat woman 　彼女は太った女性です

His sister is fatter than her 　彼の姉は彼女より太っている

Emily is the fattest woman in the 
office

　エミリーは事務所で最も太っている女
性です

If the adjective ends in “e”, this “e” 
becomes part of the suffixes er and est.

　形容詞が”e”で終わる場合、”e”はer　
や
　est の一部になります。

large › larger › the largest 　大きい－より大きい－最も大きい

nice › nicer › the nicest 　親切な－より親切な－最も親切な

safe › safer– the safest 　安全な－より安全な－最も安全な

wide › wider › the widest 　広い－より広い－最も広い

fine › finer › the finest 　すてきな－よりすてきな－最もすてき
な

Examples: 　例

The new bicycle is nicer than the old 
one

　新しい自転車は古いものよりすてきで
す

This apple is larger than the other 
one

　このリンゴは他のリンゴより大きいです

My belt is wider than yours 　私のベルトはあなたのベルトより幅広
いです

This is the finest jewelry in the store 　これは店で最もすばらしい宝石です

Note: Instead of saying, “This apple 
is bigger than that apple,” we can 
simply say, “This apple is bigger than 
that one.”

　注：”This apple is bigger than that 
apple”
　という代わりに、単に”This apple is 
bigger 
　than that one.”と言えます。



If an adjective ends with the letter “y”, 
which is preceded by a consonant, 
we replace the letter “y” with the letter 
“i”, and then add the suffix “er” or 
“est”.

　形容詞が”y”で終わり、子音の前にあ
る場
　合、”y”を”i”で取り換え、”er”あるいは
　”est”を追加します。

angry › angrier › the angriest 　　腹を立てる-より腹を立てる-最も腹を
立てる

early › earlier › the earliest 　早い－より早い－最も早い

easy › easier › the easiest 　簡単－より簡単－最も簡単

heavy › heavier › the heaviest 　重い－より重い－最も重い

ugly › uglier › the ugliest 　醜い－より醜い－最も醜い

funny › funnier › the funniest 　おかしい－よりおかしい－最もおかし
い

Examples: 　例

This exercise is easier than the other 
one

　このエクササイズは他のものより簡単
だ

This stone is heavier than that one 　この石は他のものより重い

This dog is uglier than that one 　この犬はその犬より醜い

He gets up earlier than his brother 　彼は彼の弟より早く起きる

He is angrier with me than with you. 　彼はあなたより私に怒っている

The first lesson is an easy one 　最初のレッスンは簡単です

The second lesson is easier than the 
first one

　２番目のレッスンは最初のものより簡
単　
　です

The third lesson is the easiest lesson 　3番目のレッスンが一番簡単なレッス
ンです

She is a pretty girl 　彼女は可愛い少女です

She is prettier than Emily 　彼女はエミリーより可愛いです



She is the prettiest girl in our school 　彼女は私たちの学校で最も可愛い少
女です

Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　声を出して読んでください。

He is taller than his wife

He is slimmer than his wife

He is politer than his wife

He is braver than his wife

He is wiser than his wife

My shoes are cleaner than yours

My shoes are better than yours

My shoes are shorter than yours

My shoes are smaller than yours

My shoes are wetter than yours

It is cooler today

It is colder today

It is warmer today

It is hotter today

It is nicer today

He is the happiest in the 
neighborhood

He is the fastest in the neighborhood

He is the tallest in the neighborhood

He is the luckiest in the neighborhood



He is the finest in the neighborhood

Emily is tall but Ann is taller

Emily is strong but Ann is stronger

Emily is fat but Ann is fatter

Emily is happy but Ann is happier

Emily is young but Ann is younger

Lesson 22 レッスン　22

Vocabulary 語彙

more 　もっと多い、より多数の

most 　最も多い、最大

responsible   責任がある

comfortable 　心地よい、快適な

intelligent 　知的な

interesting 　興味深い、面白い

valuable 　貴重な

documents 　書類

armchair 　腕掛けイス

fiancé 　婚約者

life 　人生、生命

expensive 　高価な



all 　すべての

album 　アルバム

worse 　より悪い

worst 　最悪な

better 　より良い

best 　最高な

less 　より少ない

least 　最小、最も少ない

much 　多い、多量

farther 　より遠い

farthest 　最も遠い

memory 　記憶

mark 　成績、マーク

boring 　退屈な

fuel 　燃料

film 　フィルム

university 　大学

economical 　経済的な

efficient 　効率的な

confident 　自信に満ちた

handsome 　ハンサム、二枚目

ambitious 　野心のある

sympathetic 　同情的な



painful 　痛いを伴う、痛い

popular 　人気のある

successful 　成功的な

helpful 　役立つ、助けになる

motorcycle 　オートバイ

The adjective (continued) 形容詞　(続く)

If an adjective has three or 
more syllables, we achieve the 
comparative by adding the word 
“more” or "less" before the adjective. 
We achieve the superlative by adding 
the phrase “the most” or "the least" 
before the adjective.

　　　形容詞に3つ以上の子音がある
時、
　　　比較級は形容詞の前に”more”
　　あるいは”less”　を追加して作りま
す。
　　　最上級は形容詞の前に”the most”
　
　　　あるいは”the least”を追加して
　　　作ります。

beautiful › more beautiful › the most 
beautiful

　美しい－より美しい－最も美しい

responsible › more responsible › the 
most responsible

　責任のある－より責任のある－最も責
任
　のある

comfortable › more comfortable › the 
most comfortable

　心地よい－より心地よい－最も心地よ
い

dangerous › more dangerous › the 
most dangerous

　危険な－より危険な－最も危険な

important › more important › the most 
important

　重要な－より重要な－最も重要な

intelligent › more intelligent › the most 
intelligent

　　知的な－より知的な－最も知的な

interesting › more interesting › the 
most interesting

　面白い－より面白い－最も面白い



valuable › more valuable › the most 
valuable

　貴重な－より貴重な－最も貴重な

Examples 　例

This road is more dangerous 　この道路はもっと危険です

These documents are more important 
than those

　これらの書類はそれらより重要です

This armchair is more comfortable 
than that one

　この腕掛けイスはそっちのイスより快
適です

This story is more interesting than the 
other one

　　　この物語は他のものより面白い

She is the most beautiful girl in the 
school

　彼女は学校で最も美しい少女です

My fiancé is the most important 
person in my life

　私の婚約者は私の人生の中で最も重
要
　な人です

He has an expensive hat 　彼は高価な帽子を持っている

My hat is more expensive than his 　私の帽子は彼のより高価だ

I have the most expensive hat of all 　私が最も高価な帽子を持っている

Irregular adjectives 不規則な変化をする形容詞

bad › worse › the worst 　悪い－より悪い－最悪な

good › better › the best 　良い－より良い－最高な

little › less › the least 　少ない－より少ない－最少な

much › more › most 　多い－より多い－最多な

many › more › most 　多い－より多い－最多な

far › farther › farthest 　遠い－より遠い－最も遠い

Examples: 　例：

I have a bad memory 　私の記憶は悪い



You have a worse memory than I 
have

　あなたの記憶は私より悪い

His memory is the worst in the 
university

　彼の記憶は大学で最低だ

I am a good typist 　私は良いタイピストです

Dan is a better typist than I 　ダンは私より良いタイピストです

She is the best typist in the office 　彼女は事務所で最高のタイピストです

The weather today is better than 
yesterday

　今日の天気は昨日より良い

Emily has the best marks of all    　エミリーの成績は私たちの中でも
　　　最高です

He is the most boring person in our 
office

　彼は事務所の中でも最も退屈な人で
す

This car uses less fuel than that one 　　この車はその車より燃費が少ない

This is the worst film this week 　これは今週中最悪の映画です

Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　声を出して読んでください

My car is more beautiful than yours

My car is more economical than 
yours

My car is faster than yours

My car is wider than yours

My car is longer than yours

He is the most efficient person in our 
office

He is the most confident person in 
our office



He is the most handsome person in 
our office

He is the most ambitious person in 
our office

He is the most sympathetic person in 
our office

It is the most difficult problem

It is the most painful problem

It is the most important problem

It is the most interesting problem

It is the most ancient problem

She is more popular than her cousin

She is more successful than her 
cousin

She is more helpful than her cousin

She is more beautiful than her cousin

She is friendlier than her cousin

Which is faster, a bicycle or a 
motorcycle?

Which is faster, an airplane or a 
helicopter?

Which is faster, a car or a train?

Which is faster, a ship or a boat?

Which is faster, a bus or a horse?



Lesson 23 レッスン　23

Vocabulary 語彙

match 　合う

top 　最上、一番、最高

pair 　ペア

bought 　買った　（buyの過去形）

hitchhiker 　ヒッチハイカー

reach 　達する

tail 　尾

eagle 　わし

nest 　巣

poem 　詩

abroad 　海外

Japanese 　日本語、日本人

birthday 　誕生日

strike 　ストライキ

hostel 　ホステル

poetry 　詩、詩集

boss 　上司

rights 　権利



show 　見せる

trip 　旅行

delay 　遅れる

salary 　給与

mine 　私の

yours 　あなたの

his 　彼の

hers 　彼女の

its 　その

ours 　私たちの

theirs 　彼らの

neighbor 　近所

called 　電話を掛けた

helmet 　ヘルメット

clown 　道化師

crown 　王冠

photograph 　写真

towel 　タオル

apricot 　アンズ、アプリコット

medicine 　薬

florist 　花屋

Possessive form 　所有格



We use the possessive form to 
indicate that one noun belongs to 
another noun.
There are two ways to express 
possession:
1. By adding the preposition “of” 
before the possessive noun.
2. By adding an apostrophe and 
the letter “s” (’s) at the end of the 
possessive noun. 

　　ある名詞が他の名詞の属しているこ
と
　　を表現するには、所有格を使いま
す。
　　所有を表すには二通りの方法があり
ます。
　　所有格名詞の前に前置詞の”of”を
　　追加するか、
　　所有格名詞の語尾にアポストロフィ
ーと
　　”s”（’s）を追加します

Adding the preposition “of” before a 
noun

　名詞の前に前置詞の”of”を追加する。
　

the mother of the bride 　花嫁の母親

the top of the mountain 　山の頂上

the shoes of my father 　父のくつ

I bought a box of matches 　　　私はひと箱のマッチを買った

The soldiers climbed to the top of the 
mountain

　兵士は山の頂上に登った

I have two pairs of shoes 　私は２足のくつを持っている

They locked the gates of the palace 　彼らは宮殿の門に鍵を掛けた

The hitchhikers reached the end of 
the road

　ヒッチハイカーは道の終りにたどり着
いた

Adding an apostrophe and the letter 
“s” (’s) at the end of the possessive 
noun. 
This possessive form is used with 
nouns representing live entities 
(people, names, animals, birds, etc).

　　　所有格名詞の語尾にアポストロフ
ィー
　　　と”s”（’s）を追加します。
　　　この所有格は生物を表す名詞
　　　（人々、名前、動物、鳥など）
　　　と共に使用されます。

The wife of Dan › Dan's wife

The secretary of my husband › my 
husband's secretary



The tail of the dog › the dog's tail

The nest of the bird › the bird's nest

The poems of Shakespeare › 
Shakespeare's poems

Examples 　例

Dan's wife is a teacher 　ダンの奥さんは先生です

My husband's secretary is abroad 　私の夫の秘書は海外にいます

My friend's name is Dan 　私の友達の名前はダンです

Dan's car is Japanese 　ダンの車は日本車です

Emily's brother works in London 　エミリーの兄はロンドンで働いています

What is Dan's favorite color? 　ダンのお気に入りの色は何ですか？

What is your teacher's name? 　あなたの先生の名前は何ですか？

What is Emily's address? 　エミリーの住所は何ですか？

When is your sister's birthday? 　あなたの妹の誕生日はいつですか？

Where is Doug's book? 　ダグの本はどこですか？

Is this Mr. Lee's hat? 　これはリーさんの帽子ですか？

If a noun is in plural form and 
already has the letter “s” added to 
it, we simply add an apostrophe (‘) 
after the last letter.

　　　名詞が複数形ですでに”s”がついて
いる
　　　場合、語尾にアポストロフィー（’　）
　　　を追加します。

The girls' names 　その少女たちの名前

The miners' strike 　鉱山作業者のストライキ

The students' hostel. 　学生たちのホステル

The boys' school 　少年たちの学校



Similarly, if a noun is in singular 
form and ends with the letter “s”, we 
add an apostrophe (‘) after the last 
letter.

　同様に名詞が単数形で”s”で終わる
時、
　語尾にアポストロフィー（’　）を
　追加します。

Keats' poetry 　キーツの詩

Charles' daughter 　チャールスの娘

Bess' brother 　べスの弟

Mr. Lewis’ wife 　ルイスさんの妻

The boss' car 　上司の車

Note: If a noun is in plural form, but 
does not end with the letter “s”, we 
add both an apostrophe and the 
letter “s” (’s).

　注：名詞が複数形で”s”で終わらない
時は
　アポストロフィーと”s”（’s）の両方を
　追加します。

The men's room 　男性用の部屋

The children's bedroom 　子供たちの寝室

Women's rights 　女性の権利

The same rules apply to expressions 
of time: We add an apostrophe (‘) or 
both an apostrophe and the letter “s” 
(’s).

　同じルールが時間表現にも適用され
ます。
　アポストロフィー（’ ）あるいはアポスト
ロフィー
　と”s”(’s)を追加します。

This evening's show 　今夜のショー

A day's trip 　日帰りの旅行

A two hours' delay 　2時間の遅れ

A ten minutes' walk 　10分の徒歩

A month's salary 　ひと月の給与

A day's rest 　１日の休み



Note: The following forms are also 
acceptable:
“A ten minute walk”
“A two hour delay”

　注：以下の形式も使用できます：
　“A ten minute walk”
　“A two hour delay”

A week's holiday 　１週間の休日

A winter's day 　冬の1日

In compound nouns (nouns formed 
by combining multiple words), we add 
an apostrophe and the letter “s” (’s) 
after the last part of the noun.

　　　複合名詞（複数の単語から作られ
る
　　　名詞）の場合、名詞の語尾に
　　　アポストロフィー（’ ）あるいは
　　　アポストロフィーと”s”(’s)を
　　　追加します。

My girl friend's parents 　私のガールフレンドの両親

The policeman's house 　警官の家

Sometimes, we can leave out the 
noun that is possessed.

　所有する名詞を書かない時もあります

at the butcher's shop > at the 
butcher's

at the dentist's surgery > at the 
dentist's

I am going to the dentist's 　　私は歯医者（の診療所）に行きます

The grocer's is between the baker's 
and the butcher's

　食料品店は銀行と肉屋の間にありま
す

My hat is nicer than Dan's 　私の帽子はダンのよりもすてきです。

Possessive pronouns 所有代名詞

We can use a possessive pronoun 
instead of a possessive adjective 
with a noun.

　所有形容詞と名詞の代わりに所有代
名詞
　を使用できます。

mine 　私の

yours 　あなたの



his 　彼の

hers 　彼女の

its 　その

ours 　私たちの

yours 　あなたたちの

theirs 　彼らの

Note: The word “his” can be either 
a possessive pronoun, or a 
possessive adjective.

　注：”his”は所有代名詞あるいは所有
　形容詞のどちらにもなりえます。

Is that Emily's pen? 　それはエミリーのペンですか？

No, hers is on the table. 　いいえ、彼女のはテーブルの上にあり
ます

Note: In this sentence, the 
possessive pronoun “hers” is used 
instead of “her pen”.

　注：この文で所有代名詞の”hers”は
　”her pen”の代わりに用いられます。

Is this his book? 　これは彼の本ですか？

No, his is in the drawer. 　いいえ、彼のは引き出しの中にありま
す。

Are these your tickets? 　これらはあなたのチケットですか？

Those are ours.  　あれらは私たちのものです。

Is this bag yours? 　このバッグはあなたのですか？

Yes, it is mine. 　はい、私のです。

They are neighbors of yours. 　彼らはあなたの近所の人です。

She is a friend of ours. 　彼女は私たちの友人です。

Does the car belong to your brothers? 　その車はあなたの兄弟たちのもので
すか？

Yes, it is theirs. 　　　はい、彼らのです。



Note: In this sentence, the 
possessive pronoun “theirs” is 
used instead of “my brothers’”. 

　注：この文では所有代名詞”theres”は
　”my brothers”の代わりに使用されて
います。

Exercise エクササイズ

Let’s read out loud. 　声を出して読んでください

Dan's sister lives in Japan

Dan's sister is Japanese

Dan's sister is called Emily

Dan's sister teaches Spanish

Dan's sister is playing the violin

Emily is a girl's name

Emily is Dan's sister

Emily is the president's wife

Emily is my brother's daughter

Emily is a friend of mine

Is it the policeman's helmet?

Is it the clown's hat?

Is it the queen's crown?

Is it the pianist's piano?

Is it the boy's photograph?

Whose towel is this? It is ours

Whose typewriter is this? It is yours

Whose umbrella is this? It is mine

Whose shop is this? It is his



Whose hat is this? It is theirs

I buy meat at the butcher's

I buy cheese at the grocer's

I buy apricots at the greengrocer's

I buy medicines at the chemist's

I buy flowers at the florist's

Lesson 24 レッスン　24

Vocabulary 語彙

located 　位置する

middle 　真ん中の、中間の

population 　人口　

million 　百万

area 　面積、領域

square 　広場、四角

official 　公式な

language 　言語

capital 　首都

main 　主な

chief 　主要な、長

port 　港町



surrounded 　囲まれた

border 　境界

coastline 　海岸線

west 　西

gulf 　湾岸

distance 　距離

consists of 　～から構成される

point 　ポイント、点

centre 　中央

horizontal 　水平な

stripe 　縞模様の

background 　背景

difficult 　難しい

French 　フランス語

fluently 　流暢さ

quite 　まったく、完全に

as well 　～もまた

native language 　母国語、ネイティブ言語

accent 　アクセント

occasionally 　時々

grammar 　文法

trouble 　心配、悩み、問題点

spelling 　スペル



pronunciation 　発音

extremely 　極端に

Questions and answers 質問と答え

Do you speak English? 　あなたは英語を話しますか？

Yes I do. 　はい、話します。

Is English a difficult language? 　英語は難しい言語ですか？

No ,it isn't. It is an easy language. 　いいえ、難しくありません。簡単です。

What other languages do you speak? 　他にどの言語を話しますか？

I speak Arabic and French fluently,  
and I understand some Spanish as 
well.

　アラブ語とフランス語を流暢に話し、
　スペイン語もある程度理解できます。

Does your wife speak English too? 　あなたの奥さんも英語を話しますか？

Yes ,she speaks English quite well. 　はい、彼女の英語をかなりよく話せま
す。

What's your wife's native language? 　あなたの奥さんの母国語は何です
か？

Her native language is Spanish. 　彼女の母国語はスペイン語です。

What's your daughter's name? 　あなたの娘の名前は何ですか？

Her name is Emily. 　彼女の名前はエミリーです。

Does she speak English? 　彼女は英語を話しますか？

Yes ,she does ,but with a Spanish 
accent.

　はい、話しますが、スペイン語のアクセ
ント
　があります。

Does she make mistakes? 　彼女は間違いを犯しますか？

Yes, occasionally, in English 
grammar.

　はい、時々英語の文法を間違えます。

Who are these children? 　これらの子供たちは誰ですか？



They are my nephew and my niece. 　彼らは私の甥と姪です。

Does your nephew speak English? 　あなたの甥は英語を話しますか？

Yes ,but he has a lot of trouble with  
his spelling.

　はい、しかしスペルで多くの問題があ
ります。

And what about your niece? 　あなたの姪はどうですか？

She has no trouble with the 
pronunciation.

　彼女は発音には問題ありません。

Her English is extremely good. 　彼女の英語は極めて優秀です。


